AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

and a lower capital investment and, consequently, a lower ratio of fixed capital costs versus operating
revenues in contrast to our regulated operations. As a result, the ratio of operating income compared
to operating revenues is not comparable between the businesses. These non-regulated subsidiary
companies are not a2 component of our Regulated segment.

We continue to evaluate initiatives to help control operating costs and improve efficiencies.

Consolidated Selected Financial and Operating Statistics

Our selected five-year consolidated financial and operating statistics follow:

Years ended December 31, 2013 (1) 2012 (2 2011 (3) 2010 2009 (4)
Utility customers:
Residential water 784,100 778,350 723,649 719,812 712,619
Commercial water 39,513 39,079 35,078 34,649 34,261
Industrial water 1,369 1,374 1,213 1,226 1,222
Other water 17,320 16,730 15,762 15,376 16,242
Wastewater 98,705 95,044 84,978 86,108 84,041
Total utility customers 941,007 930,577 860,680 857,171 848,385
Operating revenues:
Residential water $ 463,156 § 447338 $ 408,904 $§ 391,922 § 356,265
Commercial water 121,615 117,992 105,837 99,632 89,520
Industrial water 25,442 25,015 21,576 20,716 18,723
Other water 57,699 70,922 65,118 63,369 64,039
Wastewater 73,062 68,225 62,780 62,156 58,577
Other utility 10,303 10,538 10,712 10,973 11,139
Regulated segment total 751,277 740,030 674,927 648,768 598,263
Other and eliminations 17,366 17,730 12,364 11,418 11,634
Consolidated $ 768,643 § 757,760 $ 687,291 $ 660,186 § 609,897
Operations and maintenance expense $ 285,340 $ 271,843 § 256,743 $ 250,989 $ 239,905
Income from continuing operations $ 204,993 § 184,087 § 141,683  § 116,379 $ 98,440
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 221300 $ 196,563 $ 143,069 § 123975 $ 104,353
Capital expenditures $ 308,171 § 347,985 § 325,808 § 308,134 § 266,190
Operating Statistics
Selected operating results as a
percentage of operating revenues:
Operations and maintenance 311% 35.9% 37.4% 38.0% 39.3%
Depreciation and amortization 16.2% 15.4% 15.8% 16.9% 17.6%
Taxes other than income taxes 6.9% 6.3% 6.0% 6.1% 6.1%
Interest expense, net 10.1% 10.3% 11.3% 11.1% 10.9%
Income from continuing operations 26.7% 24.3% 20.6% 17.6% 16.1%
Return on Aqua America stockholders’ equity 14.4% 14.2% 11.4% 10.6% 9.4%
Ratio of capital expenditures to depreciation expense 2.6 3.1 3.2 3.1 2.8
Effective tax rate (5) 10.0% 26.6% 32.8% 39.2% 39.3%

(1) Net income attributable to common shareholders includes the gain of $615 ($1,025 pre-tax) realized on the sale of a
utility system. The gain is reported in the 2013 consolidated statement of net income as 2 reduction to operations
and maintenance expense.

(2) 2012 utility customers were impacted by the addition of 65,577 utility customers associated with utility systems
acquitred.

(3) Net income attributable to common shareholders includes the gain of $3,035 ($5,058 pre-tax) tealized on the sale of
utility systems. The gain is reported in the 2011 consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations
and maintenance expense.

(4) Net income attributable to common shareholders includes the gain of $605 ($1,009 pre-tax) realized on the sale of a
utility system. The gain is reported in the 2009 consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations
and maintenance expense.

(5) See Results of Operations — Income Taxes for a discussion of the effective tax rate change for 2013 and 2012
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Our income from continuing operations has grown at an annual compound rate of approximately 16.4% and
our net income has grown at an annual compound rate of approximately 17.7% during the five-year period
ended December 31, 2013. During the past five years, operating revenues grew at a compound rate of 6.0%
and total expenses, exclusive of income taxes, grew at a compound rate of 5.5%. In addition, as a result of
the implementation of the repair tax accounting change in 2012, the Company’s provision for income taxes
decreased by $40,936 or 64.3% for the five-year period ended December 31, 2013.

Operating Segments
We have identified ten operating segments and we have one reportable segment based on the following:

* Eight segments are composed of our water and wastewater regulated utility operations in the eight
states where we provide these setvices. These operating segments are aggregated into one reportable
segment since each of these operating segments has the following similarities: economic characteristics,
nature of services, production processes, customers, water distribution and/or wastewater collection
methods, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Our single reportable segment is named the
Regulated segment.

* Two segments are not quantitatively significant to be reportable and are composed of the businesses
that provide liquid waste hauling and disposal, water and wastewater service through operating and
maintenance contracts with municipal authorities and other parties in close proximity to our utility
companies’ service tetritories, offer, through a third party, water and sewer line repair service and
protection solutions to households, backflow prevention, other non-regulated water and wastewater
services, and non-utility raw water supply services for firms, with which we enter into a water supply
contract, in the natural gas drilling industry. These segments are included as a component of “othet,”
in addition to corporate costs that have not been allocated to the Regulated segment and intersegment
eliminations. Corporate costs include general and administrative expenses, and interest expense.
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Unless specifically noted, the following discussion and analysis provides information on our consolidated
results of continuing operations. The following table provides the Regulated segment and consolidated

information for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011:

2013

2012

Other and
Regulated  Eliminations Consolidated

Other and
Regulated  Eliminations Consolidated

$ 740,030 § 17,730 $§ 757,760
259,847 11,996 271,843
45,450 1,954 47,404

Operating revenues $ 751277 § 17,366 $§ 768,643
Operations and maintenance expense 272,758 12,582 285,340
Taxes other than income taxes 51,106 2,162 53,268
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization § 427413 § 2,622 430,035
Depreciation and amortization 124,793
Operating income 305,242
Interest expense, net of AFUDC 75,042
Gain on sale of other assets (148)
Equity losses (earnings) in joint venture 2,665
Provision for income taxes 22,690
Income from continuing operations 204,993
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

of $8,425 and $8,017, respectively 16,307
Net income $ 221,300

2011
Other and

Regulated  Eliminations Consolidated

Operating revenues $ 674927 § 12,364 $ 687,291

Operations and maintenance expense 243,137 13,606 256,743

Taxes other than income taxes 39,677 1,772 41,449

Earnings (losses) before interest, taxes, depreciation and

amortization $ 392,113 § (3,014) 389,099

Depreciation and amortization 108,300

Operating income 280,799

Interest expense, net of AFUDC 70,654

Gain on sale of other assets (649)
Provision for income taxes 69,111

Income from continuing operations 141,683

Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes

of $12,893 1,386
Net income $ 143,069

10

§ 434,733 § 3,780 438,513

116,996
321,517
73,615
(1,090)
(1,976)

66,881
184,087

12,476
$ 196,563
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Consolidated Results

Operating Revenues —The growth in revenues over the past three years is a result of increases in water and
wastewater rates and in our customer base. Rate increases implemented during the past three yeats have
provided additional operating revenues of approximately $25,676 in 2013, $39,987 in 2012, and $37,988 in
2011. Negatively impacting our revenue growth in 2013 was a decrease in customer water consumption and a
dectease in infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges of $12,725 primarily in Pennsylvania, and in 2012 was a
slight decline in water consumption as compared to the prior year. The decrease in customer water
consumption in 2013 is largely due to unfavorable weather conditions in many of our service territories
during the second and third quartets of 2013 and what we believe is an increase in water conservation
awareness by our customers. The number of customers increased at an annual compound rate of 3.1% over
the past three years, adjusted to exclude customers associated with utility system dispositions, due to
acquisitions and organic growth. Acquisitions in our Regulated segment have provided additional water and
wastewater revenues of approximately $16,200 in 2013, $28,296 in 2012, and $3,960 in 2011.

On June 7, 2012, the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (“PAPUC”) granted Aqua Pennsylvania a water
rate increase designed to increase water rates by $16,700 on an annual basis. The rates in effect at the time of
the filing included $27,449 in Distribution System Improvement Charges (“DSIC”) ot 7.5% above ptior base
rates. Consequently, the total base rates increased by §44,149 since the last base rate increase, and the DSIC
was reset to zero. In addition, the rate case settlement provided for the flow-through accounting treatment of
qualifying income tax benefits should Aqua Pennsylvania change its tax accounting method to permit the
expensing of qualifying utility asset improvement costs that have historically been capitalized and depreciated
for book and tax purposes (the “Repair Change”). In December 2012, Aqua Pennsylvania implemented the
Repair Change which resulted in the net recognition of 2012 income tax benefits of $33,565, which reduced
the Company’s Federal and state income tax expense and flowed-through to net income in the fourth quarter
of 2012. In 2013, the Company recorded additional income tax benefits of $14,908, as adjusted for the 2012
tax return. Similar to 2012, the Company recorded $45,647 of income tax benefits in 2013. The Company
recognized a tax deduction on its 2012 Federal tax return of $380,000 for qualifying capital expenditures
made prior to 2012 (the “catch-up adjustment”), and based on the settlement agreement, beginning in 2013,
the Company began to amortize 1/10% of the catch-up adjustment. In accordance with the settlement
agreement, the amortization is expected to reduce income tax expense during periods when qualifying
parameters are met. During 2013, the Company amortized its catch-up adjustment and recognized $15,766
of deferred income tax benefits, which reduced income tax expense and increased the Company’s net income.
Also, as a result of the Repair Change, the fourth quarter 2012 DSIC of 2.82% for Aqua Pennsylvania’s water
customers was reset to zero beginning January 1, 2013, and Aqua Pennsylvania did not file a water base rate
case or for a DSIC in 2013.

In August 2013, the Company’s operating subsidiary in North Carolina filed an application with the North
Carolina Utilities Commission designed to increase water and wastewater rates by $8,611 or 19.2% on an
annual basis. The amount of the final rate award that might be granted by the North Carolina Utilities
Commission can vary significantly from the amount requested. The Company anticipates a final order to be
issued in May 2014.

In February 2012, two of the Company’s operating divisions in Texas began to bill interim rates in
accordance with authorization from the Texas Commission on Envitonmental Quality (the “TCEQ”). The
additional revenue billed and collected prior to the TCEQ’s final ruling was subject to refund based on the
outcome of the rate case. The rate case concluded with the issuance of an order on June 3, 2013, and no
refunds of revenue previously billed and collected were required.

Our operating subsidiaries, excluding the 2012 Pennsylvania water rate award, discussed above, received rate
increases representing estimated annualized revenues of $9,431 in 2013 resulting from six rate decisions,
$17,923 in 2012 resulting from nine rate decisions, and $6,311 in 2011 resulting from twelve rate decisions.
Revenues from these increases realized in the year of grant were $8,169 in 2013, $13,754 in 2012, and $3,312
in 2011. As of December 31, 2013, excluding the North Carolina rate request discussed above, our operating
subsidiaries currently have filed four rate requests, which are being reviewed by the state regulatory
commissions, proposing an aggregate increase of $8,425 in annual revenues. During 2014, we intend to file
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three additional rate requests proposing an aggregate of approximately $3,425 of increased annual revenues;
the timing and extent to which our rate increase requests may be granted will vary by state.

Cutrently, Pennsylvania, Ohio, Illinois, Indiana, and New Jersey allow for the use of infrastructure
rehabilitation surcharges. In Pennsylvania, this mechanism is referred to as a DSIC. The rate increases under
these surcharge mechanisms typically adjust periodically based on additional qualified capital expenditures
completed or anticipated in a future period. Infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges are capped as a
percentage of base rates, generally at 5% to 12.75% of base rates, and are reset to zero when new base rates
that reflect the costs of those additions become effective or when a utility’s earnings exceed a regulatory
benchmark. Infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges provided revenues of §$3,205 in 2013, $15,911 in 2012,
and $15,937 in 2011. The decrease in infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges for 2013 resulted primarily
from the January 1, 2013 suspension of Aqua Pennsylvania’s DSIC as a result of the implementation of the
Repair Change.

In 2012, Aqua Pennsylvania decided to adopt the repair tax accounting change on Aqua America’s 2012
federal income tax return to be filed in September 2013. The change, which was contemplated under our
subsidiary’s June 2012 rate order, allows a tax deduction for qualifying utility asset improvements that were
formerly capitalized and depreciated for book and tax purposes. As a result of Aqua Pennsylvania’s
implementing this tax accounting change, the DSIC was suspended for 2013 for Aqua Pennsylvania due to
the anticipated eatnings level to be achieved. This tax accounting change and its flow-through treatment
under the Pennsylvania rate order offset the impact of the 2013 DSIC suspension through a substantial
reduction in income tax expense and greater net income and cash flow.

Our Regulated segment also includes non-regulated opetating revenues of $10,303 in 2013, $10,538 in 2012,
and $10,712 in 2011. These operating revenues are associated with contract operations that are integrated
into the regulated utility business and operations. These amounts vary over time according to the level of
activity associated with the utility contract operations.

In addition to the Regulated segment operating revenues, we had other non-regulated revenues that were
ptimarily associated with providing liquid waste hauling and disposal, water and wastewater service through
operating and maintenance contracts with municipal authorities and other parties in close proximity to out
utility companies’ service tetritories, offering, through a third party, water and sewer line repair service and
protection solutions to households, backflow prevention, construction, other non-regulated water and
wastewater services, and non-utility raw water supply services for firms, with which we enter into a water
supply contract, in the natural gas dsilling industry of $17,712 in 2013, $18,247 in 2012, and $12,604 in 2011.

Operations and Maintenance Expenses — Operations and maintenance expenses totaled $285,340 in 2013,
$271,843 in 2012, and $256,743 in 2011. Most elements of operating costs are subject to the effects of
inflation and changes in the number of customers served. Several elements are subject to the effects of
changes in water consumption, weather and the degree of water treatment required due to variations in the
quality of the raw water. The principal elements of operating costs are labor and employee benefits,
electricity, chemicals, transportation, maintenance expenses, and insurance and claims costs. Electricity and
chemical expenses vary in relationship to water consumption, raw water quality, and price changes.
Maintenance expenses are sensitive to extremely cold weather, which can cause water mains to rupture,
resulting in additional costs to repair the affected main.

Operations and maintenance expenses increased in 2013 as compared to 2012 by $13,497 or 5.0%, primarily
due to increases in operating costs associated with acquired utility systems and other growth ventures of
$7,386, the effect of the recognition in 2012 of a tegulatory asset resulting from a completed rate case which
when compared to 2013 resulted in an increase to operations and maintenance expense by $3,356, an increase
in post-retirement benefits expense of $1,175, and normal increases in other operating costs, offset by a
decrease in water production costs of $4,396 attributed to decreased water consumption in 2013 and a gain
on sale of a utility system recognized in 2013 of $1,025. The gain on sale of utility system is reported in the
consolidated statement of net income as a component of operations and maintenance expense.

Operations and maintenance expenses increased in 2012 as compared to 2011 by $15,100 or 5.9%, primarily
due to increases in operating costs associated with acquired utility systems and other growth ventures of
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$13,080, the effect of the gains on the sales of our utility system recognized during 2011 of $5,058, an
increase in insurance expense of $2,677, an increase in post-retitement benefits expenses of $2,217, an
increase in stock-based compensation of $1,684, and normal increases in other operating costs. Offsetting
these increases were decreases in water production costs of $5,732, and the effect of the recognition of a
regulatory asset resulting from a completed rate case which reduced operations and maintenance expense by
$3,356. The decrease in water production costs results primarily from a decrease in the contractual rate of
one of our purchased water contracts, and the non-renewal of another purchased water contract.

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses —Depreciation expense was $119,258 in 2013, $111,767 in
2012, and $103,412 in 2011, and has increased principally as a result of the significant capital expenditures
made to expand and improve our utility facilities, and our acquisitions of new utility systems.

Amortization expense was §$5,535 in 2013, $5,229 in 2012, and $4,888 in 2011, and increased in 2013 and
2012 primarily due to the amortization of costs associated with, and other costs being recovered in, various
rate filings. Expenses associated with filing rate cases are deferred and amortized over periods that generally
range from one to three years.

Taxes Other than Income Taxes —Taxes other than income taxes totaled $53,268 in 2013, $47,404 in
2012, and $41,449 in 2011. The increase in 2013 is primarily due to an increase in property taxes of $4,214
associated with our Ohio acquisition, an increase in gross receipt, excise and franchise taxes of $1,797 due
primarily to our Ohio acquisition, as well as the effect of a favorable adjustment recorded in 2012 related to
gross receipts, excise and franchise taxes for one of our operating subsidiaries of $824 which had the effect of
increasing 2013’s taxes other than income taxes, offset by a decrease in capital stock taxes of $1,069
associated with a decrease in capital stock taxes assessed for Aqua Pennsylvania. The increase in 2012 is
primarily due to an increase in property taxes of $4,932, gross receipts, excise and franchise taxes of $652, and
payroll taxes of $526 resulting primarily from the partial year effect of our Ohio acquisition, offset by a
decrease in capital stock taxes of $363 for Aqua Pennsylvania.

Interest Expense, net —Net interest expense was $77,316 in 2013, $77,757 in 2012, and $77,804 in 2011.
Interest income of $438 in 2013, $372 in 2012, and $757 in 2011 was netted against interest expense. Net
interest expense decreased in 2013 primarily due to a decline in average short-term borrowings of $43,666,
offset by an increase in average outstanding fixed rate long-term debt of $40,926, as well as a decline in long
and short term interest rates. Net interest expense decreased in 2012 primarily due to a decline in short-term
interest rates and the refinancing of existing debt at lower interest rates. Interest income decreased in 2012
due to lower investment rates and lower balances on the proceeds from the issuance of tax-exempt bonds
held by trustees pending the draw-down for projects financed with the issuances. The interest income earned
on the proceeds from the issuance of tax-exempt bonds is capitalized through our allowance for funds used
during construction, a reduction to net interest expense. The weighted average cost of fixed rate long-term
debt was 5.00% at December 31, 2013, 5.06% at December 31, 2012, and 5.30% at December 31, 2011. The
weighted average cost of fixed and variable rate long-term debt was 5.00% at December 31, 2013, 4.81% at
December 31, 2012, and 5.17% at December 31, 2011.

Allowance for Funds Used Duting Construction —The allowance for funds used during construction
(“AFUDC”) was $2,274 in 2013, $4,142 in 2012, and $7,150 in 2011, and has varied over the years as a result
of changes in the average balance of utility plant construction work in progress (“CWIP”), to which AFUDC
is applied, changes in the AFUDC rate which is based predominantly on short-term interest rates, and
changes in the average balance of the proceeds held from tax-exempt bond issuances that are restricted to
funding specific capital projects. The dectreases in 2013 and 2012 are due to decreases of $43,561 and
$63,178, respectively, in the average balance of proceeds held from tax-exempt bond issuances that are
restricted to funding specific capital projects.

Gain on Sale of Other Assets — Gain on sale of other assets totaled $148 in 2013, $1,090 in 2012, and $649
in 2011, and consists of the sales of properties and marketable securities.

Egquity Loss (Earnings) in Joint Venture — Equity loss (earnings) in joint venture totaled $2,665 in 2013
and $(1,976) in 2012. The decrease in 2013 reflects a decline in water sales, due to sluggish well drilling
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activity, in connection with setving the raw water needs of firms, with which we enter into a water supply
contract, in the natural gas drilling industry.

Income Taxes — Our effective income tax rate was 10.0% in 2013, 26.6% in 2012, and 32.8% in 2011. The
decrease in the effective tax rate for 2013 and 2012 was primarily due to the 2012 change in the Company’s
tepait tax accounting method for repair expenditures at Aqua Pennsylvania which resulted in a $67,918 and
$33,565 net reduction to the Company’s 2013 and 2012 Federal and state income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2013, the Company has an unrecognized tax benefit related to the Company’s Repair Change
of which $9,795 of these tax benefits would further reduce the Company’s effective income tax rate in the
event the Company does sustain all, or a portion, of its tax position in the period this information is
determined.

b

Summazy —
Years ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Operating income $ 305242 § 321,517 § 280,799
Income from continuing operations $ 204993 § 184,087 $ 141,683
Income from discontinuing operations 16,307 12,476 1,386
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 221300 § 196,563 $§ 143,069
Diluted income from continuing operations per share $ 116 § 1.05 § 0.82
Diluted income from discontinued operations per share 0.09 0.07 0.01
Diluted net income per share 1.25 1.12 0.83

The changes in the per share income from continuing operations in 2013 and 2012 over the previous years
were due to the aforementioned changes and impacted by a 1.1% increase in the average number of common
shares outstanding during 2013 and a 0.9% increase in the average number of common shares outstanding
during 2012. The increase in the number of shares outstanding in 2013 and 2012 is primarily a result of the
additional shares sold or issued through our equity compensation plan and dividend reinvestment plan.

Income from discontinued operations for 2013 increased by $3,831 or $0.02 per diluted shate, in comparison
to 2012 primarily as a result of the net gain on sale recognized on the sales of our Florida operations in 2013,
net of income taxes, of $13,766 and the effects of the 2012 recognition of charges incurred from the disposal
of our New York subsidiary of $2,090, and an asset impairment recognized in 2012, net of tax, of $852, offset
by the effect of the prior year recognition of the gain on sale of our Maine operating subsidiary net of income
taxes of $10,821. Income from discontinued operations for 2012 increased by $11,090 or $0.06 per diluted
share, in compatison to 2011 primarily as a result of the recognition in 2012 of the gain on sale of our Maine
operating subsidiary, of $17,699 ($10,821 after-tax), the effect of the income tax expense recognized in 2011
of $7,253 for the additional deferred tax liability that arose from the difference between the stock and tax
basis of the Company’s investment in its New York and Maine operating subsidiaries, a reduction in interest
expense, net of tax, of $1,120 as a result of debt assumed in 2012 by the acquirets in the sale of our New
York and Maine operating subsidiaries, offset by charges incurred from the disposal of our New York
subsidiary of $2,090, and an asset impairment recognized in 2012, net of tax, of $852.

Although we have experienced increased income in the recent past, continued adequate rate increases
reflecting increased operating costs and new capital investments, as well as a continuation of income tax
benefits related to repair tax eligible utility asset improvement costs are important to the future realization of
improved profitability.
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Fourth Quarter Results — The following table provides our fourth quarter results:

Three Months Ended December 31,

2013 2012

Operating revenues $ 188,608 § 187,481
Operations and maintenance 74,106 72,179
Depreciation 30,287 29,031
Amortization 1,632 1,456
Taxes other than income taxes 12,947 12,704

118,972 115,370
Operating income 69,636 72,111
Interest expense, net 19,482 19,373
Allowance for funds used during construction (806) (658)
Gain on sale of other assets 27 (264)
Equity loss (earnings) in joint venture 933 (1,045
Income before income taxes 50,054 54,705
Provision for income taxes 3,324 (10,429
Income from continuing operations 46,730 65,134
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of $5,406
and $259 10,802 1,421
Net income $ 57,532 § 66,555

The increase in operating revenues of §1,127 was primarily a result of additional revenues of $§972 associated
with a larger customer base due to acquisitions, an increase in customer water consumption, an increase in
water and wastewater rates of $616 from water and wastewater rates implemented in various operating
subsidiaries, offset by a decrease in infrastructure rehabilitation surcharges of $1,921. The increase in
operations and maintenance expense of $1,927 is due primarily to an increase in post-retirement benefits
expenses of §412, the recording of a reserve of $412 for a long-lived asset, $224 of additional operating costs
associated with acquisitions, and normal increases in other operating expenses, offset by a decrease in water
production costs of $313. Depreciation expense increased by $1,256 primarily due to the utility plant placed
in service since December 31, 2012. Amortization expense increased by $176 primarily due to the
amortization of costs associated with, and other costs being recovered in, various rate filings. The inctease in
other taxes of §243 is primarily due to an increase in property taxes of $523, offset by a decrease in capital
stock taxes of $274 associated with a decrease in capital stock taxes assessed for Aqua Pennsylvania. Interest
expense increased by $109 due to an increase in our effective interest rate offset by a decrease in the average
outstanding debt balance. Allowance for funds used during construction increased by $148 primarily due to
an increase in the average balance of utility plant construction work in process, to which AFUDC is applied.
Gain on sale of other assets decreased by $237 principally due to the timing of sales of land and other
property. The decrease in equity loss (earnings) in joint venture of $1,978 reflects a decline in water sales, due
to sluggish well drilling activity, in connection with serving the raw water needs of firms , with which we enter
into a water supply contract, in the natural gas drilling industry. The provision for income taxes increased by
$13,753 as a result of the effect of the adoption in the fourth quarter of 2012 of the full year 2012 net tax
benefits recognized of $33,565 resulting from our change in tax method of accounting associated with the
Repair Change. Income from discontinued operations increased by $9,381 primarily due to the gain on sale,
net of taxes, of $10,211 for our water and wastewater utility system in Sarasota, Florida in December 2013.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Consolidated Cash Flow and Capital Expenditures

Net operating cash flows from continuing operations, dividends paid on common stock, capital expenditures
used in continuing operations, including allowances for funds used during construction, and expenditures for
acquiring water and wastewater systems for our continuing operations for the five years ended December 31,
2013 were as follows:

Net Operating Cash Common Capital
Flows Dividends Expenditures Acquisitions

2009 $ 244318 $ 74,729 $ 266,190 $ 3,373
2010 244,117 80,907 308,134 8,625
2011 352,041 87,133 325,808 8,515
2012 377,485 93,423 347,985 121,248
2013 366,720 102,889 308,171 14,997

$ 1,585,281 $ 439,081 $ 1,556,288 $ 156,758

Included in capital expenditures for the five-year period are: expenditures for the rehabilitation of existing
water distribution systems, new water distribution systems, modernization and replacement of existing
treatment plants, and water meters. During this five-year period, we received $25,135 of customer advances
and contributions in aid of construction to finance new water mains and related facilities that are not included
in the capital expenditures presented in the above table. In addition, during this period, we have made
sinking fund conttibutions and repaid debt in the amount of $520,402, and have refunded $24,271 of
customers’ advances for construction. Common dividends increased during the past five years as a result of
annual increases in the common dividends declared and paid and increases in the number of shares
outstanding during the period.

Our planned 2014 capital program, exclusive of the costs of new mains financed by advances and
contributions in aid of construction, is estimated to continue at similar levels as 2013. The 2014 capital
program is expected to include $180,600 for infrastructure rehabilitation surcharge-qualified projects. Our
planned capital program includes spending for infrastructure rehabilitation that may qualify for infrastructure
rehabilitation surcharge mechanisms, and should these regulatory mechanisms be discontinued for any
reason, which is not anticipated, we may re-evaluate the magnitude of this portion of our capital program.
Beginning Januaty 1, 2013, Aqua Pennsylvania reset its water DSIC to zero resulting from the change in its
tax method of accounting for repair tax deductions as described below. Although we were not eligible to use
a DSIC with our Aqua Pennsylvania water customers in 2013, we were able to use the income tax savings
derived from the Repair Change to continue to maintain a similar capital investment program as 2012. Our
planned 2014 capital program in Pennsylvania is estimated to be $231,000 a portion of which 1s expected to
be eligible as a repair deduction for federal income tax purposes. Our overall 2014 capital program, along
with $86,288 of sinking fund obligations and debt maturities, and $152,429 of other contractual cash
obligations, as reported in the section captioned “Contractual Obligations”, has been, or is expected to be,

financed through internally-generated funds, our revolving credit facilities, and the issuance of long-term
debt.

Future utility construction in the period 2015 through 2016, including recurring programs, such as the
ongoing replacement or rehabilitation of water meters, water mains, water treatment plant upgrades, storage
facility renovations, and additional transmission mains to meet customer demands, exclusive of the costs of
new mains financed by advances and contributions in aid of construction, is estimated to require aggregate
expenditures of approximately $641,000. We anticipate that less than one-half of these expenditures will
requite external financing . We expect to refinance $94,545 of sinking fund obligations and debt maturities
during this period as they become due with new issues of long-term debt, internally-generated funds, and our
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revolving credit facilities. The estimates discussed above do not include any amounts for possible future
acquisitions of water and wastewater systems or the financing necessaty to support them.

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash flows from operations (including the allowed deferral of federal
income tax payments), borrowings under various short-term lines of credit and other credit facilities, and
customer advances and contributions in aid of construction. Our cash flow from operations, ot internally-
generated funds, is impacted by the timing of rate relief, water consumption, and changes in federal tax laws
with respect to accelerated tax depreciation or deductions for utility construction projects. We fund our
capital and acquisition programs through internally-generated funds, supplemented by short-term borrowings.
Over time, we partially repay or pay-down our short-term borrowings with long-term debt and when
necessaty proceeds from the issuance of common stock. The ability to finance our future construction
programs, as well as our acquisition activities, depends on our ability to attract the necessary external
financing and maintain internally-generated funds. Rate orders permitting compensatory rates of return on
invested capital and timely rate adjustments will be requited by our operating subsidiaries to achieve an
adequate level of earnings and cash flow to enable them to secure the capital they will need to operate and to
maintain satisfactory debt coverage ratios.

In December 2012, we changed our tax method of accounting as permitted under Internal Revenue Service
(“IRS”) regulations for qualifying utility system repairs in Aqua Pennsylvania effective with the tax year ended
December 31, 2012 and for ptior tax years. The repair tax accounting method was changed to permit the
expensing of qualifying utility asset improvement costs that were previously being capitalized and depreciated
for book and tax purposes (the “Repair Change”). The Repair Change was implemented in response to a
June 2012 rate order issued by the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission to Aqua Pennsylvania
(“settlement agreement”) which provides for flow-through accounting treatment of qualifying income tax
benefits resulting from the Repair Change. As a result of this settlement agreement, the net 2012 income tax
benefits of $33,565 reduced the Company’s Federal and state income tax expense and increased net income in
the fourth quarter of 2012. In 2013, the Company recorded additional income tax benefits, as adjusted for
the 2012 tax return, of $14,908. Similar to 2012, the Company recorded $45,647 of income tax benefits in
2013. The Company recognized a tax deduction on its 2012 Federal tax return of $380,000 for qualifying
capital expenditures made prior to 2012, and based on the settlement agreement, beginning in 2013, the
Company began to amortize 1/10t% of the catch-up adjustment. In accordance with the settlement
agreement, the amortization is expected to reduce income tax expense during periods when qualifying
parameters are met. During 2013, the Company amortized its catch-up adjustment and recognized $15,766
of defetred income tax benefits, which reduced income tax expense and increased the Company’s net income.

Our planned 2014 capital program is projected to continue at a similar level compared to 2013, and the repair
tax deduction is anticipated to continue in 2014 and beyond. Our 2014 earnings will be impacted by the
following factors in Aqua Pennsylvania: the repair tax deduction in 2014 is expected to decrease income tax
expense by a similar amount as 2013, and the ten year amortization of the catch-up adjustment is also
expected to reduce income tax expense; offset by the effect on operating revenue as a result of the DSIC
being reset to zero beginning January 1, 2013 and remaining at that level in 2014, and the effect of regulatory
lag as we will likely not be filing a request for a base rate increase in Pennsylvania until after 2014. In
addition, during 2013, additional income tax benefits wete recognized of $17,736, related to a change in the
Company’s tax method of accounting for qualifying utility system repairs in some non-Pennsylvania operating
divisions, and we are continuing to evaluate the use of 2 Repair Change in other states where we operate,
although the rate treatment afforded in operating divisions outside of Pennsylvania is not expected to have a
direct impact on income tax expense.

The Tax Relief, Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Creation Act of 2010 (the “Tax Relief
Act”) was enacted on December 17, 2010 and provided for an extension of 50% bonus depreciation for
qualifying capital additions through 2012 and a 100% expensing allowance for qualifying capital additions
placed in service after September 8, 2010 through 2011. A substantial portion of our capital expenditures
qualified for 50% bonus depreciation or the 100% expensing allowance. As a result of the Tax Relief Act, the
Company’s Federal income tax payments were eliminated for tax year 2011 and our net operating cash flows
were favorably impacted. In addition, we received a Federal income tax refund in the amount of $33,600 in
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October 2011 relating to our 2010 tax return. In the first quarter of 2011, one of our state tax jurisdictions
announced that it would recognize the 100% expensing allowance beginning after September 8, 2010 and in
2011. As a result of this guidance and the flow-through treatment afforded by that state’s regulatory
commission, the net state tax benefit reduced our state income tax expense in 2011 by $14,800, reduced our
effective income tax rate, and increased our earnings by $0.085 per share. The American Tax Relief Act of
2012 was enacted on January 2, 2013 and provided for an extension of the 50% bonus depreciation for
qualifying capital additions for tax year 2013.

Acquisitions

During the past five yeats, we have expended cash of $156,758 and issued 205,065 shares of common stock,
valued at $2,909 at the time of the acquisition, related to the acquisition of utility systems, both water and
wastewater utilities, as well as investments in the natural gas drilling industry. During 2013, we completed 15
acquisitions of water and wastewater utility systems for $14,997 in cash in four of the states in which we
operate.

As patt of the Company’s growth-through-acquisition strategy, in July 2011, the Company entered into a
definitive agreement with American Water to purchase all of the stock of the subsidiary that held American
Water’s regulated water and wastewater operations in Ohio. American Water’s Ohio operations served
approximately 59,000 customers. On May 1, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of American
Water’s water and wastewater operations in Ohio. The total purchase price at closing consisted of §102,154
in cash plus specific assumed liabilities, including debt of $14,281, as adjusted pursuant to the purchase
agreement based on book value at closing. The transaction has been accounted for as a business
combination. The Ohio acquisition was financed primarily from the proceeds from the January 1, 2012 sale
of our Maine subsidiary, the May 1, 2012 sale of our New York subsidiaty, and by the issuance of long-term
and/ort short-term debt. In addition to our Ohio acquisition, during 2012, we completed 16 acquisitions of
water and wastewater utility systems for $19,094 in cash in six of the states in which we operate.

In June 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of approximately 51 water and five wastewater systems
in Texas serving approximately 5,300 customers. The total purchase price consisted of $6,245 in cash. The
Company’s acquisitions in Ohio and Texas were accretive to the Company’s results of operations, however,
the pro forma effect of the businesses acquired are not material to the Company’s results of operations. In
addition to our Texas acquisition, during 2011, we completed eight acquisitions of water and wastewater
utility systems for $2,270 in cash in three of the states in which we operate. During 2010, we completed 23
acquisitions of water and wastewater utility systems in six of the states in which we operate. The 2010
acquisitions were completed for $8,625 in cash. During 2009, we completed 18 acquisitions of water and
wastewater systems in five of the states in which we operate, including expanding our operations into one
new state. The 2009 acquisitions were completed for $3,373 in cash and the issuance of 205,065 shares of
common stock valued at $2,909 at the time of the acquisition.

We included the operating results of these acquisitions in our consolidated financial statements beginning on
the respective acquisition dates.

We continue to hold acquisition discussions with several water and wastewater systems. Our typical
acquisitions are expected to be financed with short-term debt with subsequent repayment from the proceeds
of long-term debt, retained earnings, or equity issuances.

In September 2011, one of our subsidiaries entered into a joint venture with a firm that operates natural gas
pipelines and processing plants for the construction and operation of a private pipeline system to supply raw
watet to natural gas well drilling operations in the Marcellus Shale in north-central Pennsylvania. The initial
18-mile pipeline commenced operations in the second quarter of 2012. The initial pipeline system was
expanded for an additional 38 miles with a permitted intake on the Susquehanna River, which extended the
pipeline to additional drillers. The total cost of this pipeline was $109,000. This project marks an expansion
of our growth venture in serving the raw water needs of firms in the natural gas drilling industry. The joint
venture has entered into water supply contract with natural gas drilling companies and negotiations continue
with other area drilling companies. As of December 31, 2013, our capital contributions since inception
totaled $53,643 in cash. This investment has been financed through the issuance of long-term debt. Our
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49% investment in this joint venture is as an unconsolidated affiliate and is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting. Our investment is carried at cost, including capital contributions or distributions and
our equity in earnings and losses since the commencement of the system’s operations. Since some practices
for natural gas drilling require a large quantity of raw water in order to extract gas, we are continuing to hold
exploratoty discussions with other natural gas drilling companies about their needs for raw water supply.

Dispositions

We routinely review and evaluate areas of our business and operating divisions and, over time, may sell utility
systems or portions of systems. In 2010, 2011, 2012, and 2013, in accordance with our strategy to focus our
resources on states where we have critical mass to improve our economies of scale and expect future
economic growth, we sold water and wastewater systems in five states: South Carolina, Missouri, Maine,
New York, and Flotida. With respect to the sale of our systems in Missouti and the sale of our systems in
New York, we acquired additional utility systems in Texas and in Ohio.

In March, April, and December 2013, through five separate sales transactions, we completed the sale of our
water and wastewater utility systems in Florida, which concluded our regulated operations in Florida. The
Company received total net proceeds from these sales of $88,934, and recognized a gain on sale of $21,178
($13,766 after-tax). One of our sales in Florida, which was completed in March 2013, and represented
approximately 8% of our customers served in Florida, remains subject to customary regulatory review, for
which we expect to receive the regulator’s decision by midyear 2014. If the regulator does not approve this
sale, the purchase price would be refunded and the assets sold would revert back to the Company.

In June 2013, the Company sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $3,400. The sale
resulted in the recognition of a gain on sale of these assets, net of expenses, of $1,025 (§615 after-tax). The
utility system represented approximately 0.04% of the Company’s total assets.

In July 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Connecticut Water Service, Inc. to sell its
operations in Maine, which served approximately 16,000 customers, for cash at closing plus specific assumed
liabilities, including debt of $17,364. On January 1, 2012, we completed the sale for net proceeds of $36,870,
and recognized a gain on sale of $17,699 ($10,821 after-tax). The sale of our Maine operations concluded our
regulated operations in Maine. The proceeds were used to finance a pottion of our acquisition of American
Water’s Ohio subsidiary, pay-down a portion of our short-term debt, and other general corporate purposes.

In July 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with American Water to sell its operations in
New York for its book value at closing plus specific assumed liabilities, including debt of approximately
$23,000. On May 1, 2012, the Company completed the sale for net proceeds of $36,688 in cash as adjusted
pursuant to the sale agreement based on book value at closing. The Company’s New York operations served
approximately 51,000 customers. The sale of our New York operations concluded our regulated operations
in New York. The proceeds were used to finance a portion of our acquisition of American Water’s Ohio
subsidiary, pay-down a portion of our short-term debt, and other general corporate purposes.

In June 2011, we sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $4,106. The sale resulted in
the recognition of a gain on the sale, net of expenses, of $2,692 ($1,615 after-tax), and is reported in the
consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations and maintenance expense. The utility
system represented approximately 0.03% of Aqua America’s total assets. In May 2011, we sold our regulated
water and wastewater operations in Missouri for net proceeds of $3,225, resulting in a small gain on sale. The
sale of our utility operations in Missouri represented approximately 0.07% of Aqua America’s total assets. In
January 2011, we sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $3,118. The sale resulted in
the recognition of a gain on the sale, net of expenses, of $2,452 ($1,471 after-tax). The utility system
represented approximately 0.01% of Aqua America’s total assets. The gain is reported in the consolidated
statement of net income as a reduction to operations and maintenance expense.

In June 2009, we sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $1,601, which was in excess
of the book value for these assets. The proceeds were used to pay-down short-term debt and the sale
resulted in the recognition in 2009 of a gain on the sale of these assets, net of expenses of $1,009 ($605 after-
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tax). The gain is reported in the 2009 consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations and
maintenance expense. These utility systems represented approximately 0.02% of Aqua America’s total assets.

The City of Fort Wayne, Indiana (the “City”) has authorized the acquisition by eminent domain of the
northern potrtion of the utility system of one of the Company’s operating subsidiaries in Indiana, Utility
Center, Inc., (the “Northern Assets”). In January 2008, the Company reached a settlement with the City to
transition the Northern Assets in February 2008 upon receipt of the City’s initial valuation payment of
$16,911. The settlement agreement specifically stated that the final valuation of the Northern Assets will be
determined through a continuation of the legal proceedings that were filed challenging the City’s valuation.
On February 12, 2008, the Company turned over the Northern Assets to the City upon receipt of the initial
valuation payment. The proceeds received by the Company are in excess of the book value of the assets
relinquished. No gain has been recognized due to the contingency over the final valuation of the assets. The
net book value of the Northern Assets has been removed from the consolidated balance sheet and the
difference between the net book value and the initial payment received has been deferred and is recorded in
other accrued liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Once the contingency is resolved and
the asset valuation is finalized, through the finalization of the litigation between the Company and the City,
the amounts deferred will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated statement of net income. On March
16, 2009, oral argument was held on procedural aspects with respect to the valuation evidence that may be
presented and whether the Company is entitled to a jury trial. On October 12, 2010, the Wells County
Indiana Circuit Court ruled that the Company is not entitled to a jury trial, and that the Wells County judge
should review the City of Fort Wayne Board of Public Works’ assessment based upon a “capricious, arbitrary
or an abuse of discretion” standard. The Company disagreed with the Court’s decision and appealed the
Wells County Indiana Circuit Court’s decision to the Indiana Court of Appeals. On January 13, 2012, the
Indiana Coutt of Appeals reached a decision upholding the Wells County Indiana Circuit Court decision. On
February 10, 2012, the Company filed a petition for transfer requesting that the Indiana Supreme Court
review the matter. On April 11, 2013, the Supreme Court of Indiana ruled that the statute at issue gives the
Company the right to a full evidentiary hearing before a jury regarding the value of the assets and remanded
the case to the trial court for a proceeding consistent with that ruling. The Company continues to evaluate its
legal options with respect to this decision. Depending upon the outcome of all of the legal proceedings,
including the planned transaction below, which would resolve this litigation, the Company may be required to
refund a portion of the initial valuation payment, or may receive additional proceeds. The Northern Assets
relinquished represents approximately 0.4% of the Company’s total assets.

In addition, in December 2012, the Fort Wayne City Council considered an ordinance that sought to declare
it a “public convenience and necessity” to acquire some of the Company's water utility system assets located
in the southwest section of the City and in Allen County (the “Southern Assets”), and if negotiations with
Fort Wayne officials were to fail, to condemn the Southern Assets. The first public hearing on the ordinance
was held on January 22, 2013 and a subsequent hearing scheduled for February 5, 2013 was not held due to
ongoing settlement discussions between the parties. On July 2, 2013, the Company’s operating subsidiary and
the City signed a letter of intent, which among other items, addresses many of the terms by which the City
would purchase the Company’s Southern Assets, will resolve the litigation between the Company and the City
with respect to the Northern Assets, and will establish the terms by which the Company’s remaining
operating subsidiary will treat wastewater sent to it by the City. The letter of intent states that the City agrees
to pay the Company $50,100 for the Northern Assets and Southern Assets in addition to the $16,911 paid to
the Company by the City in 2008 as an initial valuation payment for the Northern Assets (for a total payment
of $67,011). The letter of intent is conditioned on the Company’s Board of Directors and City Council
approving the final terms of the proposed transaction, and the Company and the City entering into several
definitive agreements that detail the subject matter of the letter of intent. On February 27, 2014, the
Company’s Board of Ditectors authorized management to enter into agreements with the City on terms and
conditions that are consistent with the July 2, 2013 letter of intent, for among other items, the sale of the
Company’s Notthern Assets and Southern Assets to the City. Further, the completion of the transaction is
subject to regulatory requirements and approval. If this transaction is consummated, the Company will
relinquish its water utility system yet expand its sewer customer base in the City. The completion of the
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transaction is not expected to close until the third quarter of 2014. The Company continues to evaluate its
legal and operational options on an ongoing basis.

Despite these transactions, our primary strategy continues to be to acquire additional water and wastewater
systems, to maintain our existing systems where there is a strategic business benefit, and to actively oppose
unilateral efforts by municipal governments to acquire any of our operations.

The Company is routinely involved in other legal matters, including both asserted and unasserted legal claims,
during the ordinary course of business. See Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies of the consolidated
financial statements for 2 discussion of the Company’s legal matters. It is not always possible for
management to make a meaningful estimate of the potential loss ot range of loss associated with such
litigation. Also, unanticipated changes in circumstances and/or revisions to the assessed probability of the
outcomes of legal matters could result in expenses being incurred in future petiods as well as an increase in
actual cash required to resolve the legal matter.

Sources of Capital

Stnce net operating cash flow plus advances and contributions in aid of construction have not been sufficient
to fully fund cash requitements, we issued approximately $745,112 of long-term debt and obtained other
short-term borrowings during the past five years. At December 31, 2013, we have a $150,000 long-term
revolving credit facility that expires in March 2017, of which $24,428 was designated for letter of credit usage,
$125,572 was available for borrowing and no borrowings were outstanding at December 31, 2013. In
addition, we have short-term lines of credit of $160,500, of which $123,760 was available. These short-term
lines of credit are subject to renewal on an annual basis. Although we believe we will be able to renew these
facilities, there is no assurance that they will be renewed, or what the terms of any such renewal will be.

Our consolidated balance sheet historically has had a negative working capital position, whereby routinely our
current liabilities exceed our current assets. Management believes that internally-generated funds along with
existing credit facilities and the proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt will be adequate to provide
sufficient working capital to maintain normal operations and to meet our financing requirements for at least
the next twelve months.

We are obligated to comply with covenants under some of our loan and debt agreements. These covenants
contain a number of restrictive financial covenants, which among other things limit, subject to specific
exceptions, the Company’s ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated total capitalization, and
require 2 minimum level of earnings coverage over interest expense. During 2013, we were in compliance
with our debt covenants under our credit facilities. Failure to comply with our debt covenants could result in
an event of default, which could result in us being required to repay or finance our borrowings before their
due date, possibly limiting our future botrowings, and increasing our borrowing costs.

In February 2012, we renewed our universal shelf registration, which expired in December 2011, through a
filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) which allows for the potential future offer and
sale by us, from time to time, in one or more public offerings, of an indeterminate amount of our common
stock, preferred stock, debt securities, and other securities specified therein at indeterminate prices. The
Company’s Board of Directors has authorized the Company to issue up to $500,000 of our common stock,
preferred stock, debt securities, and other securities specified therein under this universal shelf registration
statement. No issues have been completed to date under this shelf registration statement.

In addition, we have a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC to permit the offering from time to time
of shares of common stock and shates of preferred stock in connection with acquisitions. During 2013,
2012, 2011, and 2010, we did not issue any shares under the acquisition shelf registration. During 2009, we
issued 205,065 shares of common stock totaling $2,909 to acquite a water system. The balance remaining
available for use under the acquisition shelf registration as of December 31, 2013 is 1,904,487 shares. We will
determine the form and terms of any securities issued under these shelf registrations at the time of issuance.

We offer a Dividend Reinvestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan”) that provides a convenient
and economical way to purchase shares of the Company. Under the direct stock purchase portion of the
Plan, shares are sold throughout the year. The dividend reinvestment portion of the Plan offers a 5%
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discount on the purchase of shares of common stock with reinvested dividends. As of the December 2013
dividend payment, holders of 13.1% of the common shares outstanding participated in the dividend
reinvestment portion of the Plan. The shares issued under the Plan are either original issue shates or shares
purchased by the Company’s transfer agent in the open-market. During the past five years, we have sold
3,588,168 original issue shares of common stock for net proceeds of $58,635 through the dividend
reinvestment portion of the Plan, and we used the proceeds to invest in our operating subsidiaries, to repay
short-term debt, and for general cotporate purposes. In 2013, 154,900 shares of the Company were
purchased under the dividend reinvestment portion of the Plan by the Company’s transfer agent in the open-
market for $3,693.

The Board of Directors has authorized us to purchase our common stock, from time to time, in the open
market or through privately negotiated transactions. As of December 31, 2013, 685,348 shares remain
available for repurchase. Funding for future stock purchases, if any, is not expected to have a material impact
on our financial position.

In May 2013 the Board of Directors approved a five-for-four stock split to be effected in the form of 2 25%
stock distribution to shareholders of record on August 16, 2013. Common shares outstanding do not include
shares held by the Company in treasury. The new shares were distributed on September 1, 2013. Aqua
America’s par value of $0.50 per share did not change as a result of the common stock distribution, and
$17,655 was transferred from capital in excess of par value to common stock to record the stock split.

Off-Balance Sheet Financing Arrangements

We do not engage in any off-balance sheet financing atrangements. We do not have any interest in entities
referred to as variable interest entities, which includes special purpose entities and other structured finance
entities.
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Contractual Obligations
The following table summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2013:

Payments Due By Period
Less than 1 More than 5
Total year 1-3years 3-5years years

Long-term debt (1) $ 1,554,871 § 86,288 § 94,545 $ 107,013 $ 1,267,025
Interest on fixed-rate, long-term debt (2) 1,218,782 77,512 143,861 137,360 860,049
Operating leases (3) 21,809 2,659 3,468 1,790 13,892
Unconditional purchase obligations (4) 79,911 12,637 26,147 12,579 28,548
Other purchase obligations (5) 38,038 38,038 - - -
Pension and other post-retirement benefit
plans' obligations (6) 20,638 20,638 - - -
Other obligations (7) 20,534 945 1,951 6,236 11,402
Total $ 2954583 § 238717 $ 269,972 $ 264,978 $ 2,180,916

(1) Represents sinking fund obligations and debt maturities.

(2 Represents interest payable on fixed rate, long-term debt. Amounts reported may differ from actual due to future
refinancing of debt.

(3) Represents operating leases that are noncancelable, before expiration, for the lease of motor vehicles, buildings, land
and other equipment.

(4) Represents our commitment to purchase minimum quantities of water as stipulated in agreements with other water

purveyors. We use purchased water to supplement our water supply, particularly during periods of peak customer
demand. Our actual purchases may exceed the minimum required levels.

(5) Represents an approximation of the open purchase orders for goods and services purchased in the ordinary course
of business.

(6) Represents contributions contractually obligated to be made to pension and other post-retirement benefit plans.
(7) Represents expenditures estimated to be required under legal and binding contractual obligations.

In addition to these obligations, we pay refunds on customers’ advances for construction over a specific
period of time based on operating revenues related to developer-installed water mains or as new customers
are connected to and take service from such mains. After all refunds are paid, any remaining balance is
transferred to contributions in aid of construction. The refund amounts are not included in the above table
because the refund amounts and timing are dependent upon several variables, including new customer
connections, customer consumption levels and future rate increases, which cannot be accurately estirated.
Portions of these refund amounts are payable annually through 2023 and amounts not paid by the contract
expiration dates become non-refundable.

In addition to the obligations disclosed in the contractual obligations table above, we have uncertain tax
positions of $28,690. Although we believe our tax positions comply with applicable law, we have made
judgments as to the sustainability of each uncertain tax position based on its technical merits. Due to the
uncertainty of future cash outflows, if any, associated with our uncertain tax positions, we are unable to make
a reasonable estimate of the timing or amounts that may be paid.

We will fund these contractual obligations with cash flows from operations and liquidity sources held by or
available to us.
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Market Risk

We are subject to market risks in the normal coutse of business, including changes in interest rates and equity
prices. The exposure to changes in interest rates is a result of financings through the issuance of fixed rate,
long-term debt. Such exposure is typically related to financings between utility rate increases, because
generally our rate increases provide a revenue level to allow recovery of our current cost of capital. Interest
rate risk is managed through the use of a combination of long-term debt, which is at fixed interest rates and
short-term debt, which is at floating interest rates. As of December 31, 2013, the debt maturities by period
and the weighted average interest rate for long-term debt are as follows:

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018  Thereafter Total Fair Value

Long-term debt:

Fixed rate $ 86,288 § 58,695 $ 35,850 $ 53,019 $ 53,994 § 1,267,025 § 1,554,871 $ 1,540,296
Variable rate - - - - - - - -
Total $ 86,288 $ 58,695 $ 35,850 $§ 53,019 $ 53,994 $ 1,267,025 $ 1,554,871 $ 1,540,296
Weighted average
interest rate 5.18%  5.19%  4.81% 5.14%  6.32% 4.90% 5.00%

From time to time, we make investments in marketable equity securities. As a result, we are exposed to the
risk of changes in equity prices for the “available for sale” marketable equity securities. As of December 31,
2013, the carrying value of these investments, which reflects market value, was $196.

Capitalization

The following table summarizes our capitalization during the past five years:

December 31, 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Long-term debt (1) 50.3% 53.4% 54.8% 57.0% 56.6%
Aqua America stockholders' equity 49.7% 46.6% 45.2% 43.0% 43.4%

100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%  100.0%

(1) Includes current portion, as well as our borrowings under a variable rate revolving credit
agreement of $0 at December 31, 2013 and $100,000 at December 31, 2012.

Over the past five years, the changes in the capitalization ratios primatily resulted from the issuance of
common stock, the issuance of debt to finance our acquisitions and capital program, growth in net income,
and the declaration of dividends. It is our goal to maintain an equity ratio adequate to support the current
Standard and Poor’s corporate credit rating of “A+” and the senior secured debt rating of “AA-” for Aqua
Pennsylvania, our largest operating subsidiary.

Dividends on Common Stock

We have paid common dividends consecutively for 69 years. Effective May 8, 2013, our Board of Directors
authorized an increase of 8.6% in the September 1, 2013 quarterly dividend over the dividend we paid in the
previous quarter. As a result of this authorization, beginning with the dividend payment in September 2013,
the annualized dividend rate increased to $0.608 per share from $0.560 per share. This is the 23« dividend
increase in the past 22 years and the 15t consecutive year that we have increased our dividend in excess of
five percent. We presently intend to pay quartesly cash dividends in the future, on March 1, June 1,
September 1, and December 1, subject to our earnings and financial condition, restrictions set forth in our
debt instruments, regulatory requirements and such other factots as our Board of Directors may deem
relevant. During the past five years, our common dividends paid have averaged 55.675 of net income
attributable to common shareholders.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Our financial condition and results of operations are impacted by the methods, assumptions, and estimates
used in the application of ctitical accounting policies. The following accounting policies are particularly
important to our financial condition or results of operations, and require estimates or other judgments of
matters of uncertainty. Changes in the estimates or other judgments included within these accounting
policies could result in a significant change to the financial statements. We believe our most critical
accounting policies include revenue recognition, the use of regulatory assets and liabilities, the valuation of
our long-lived assets, which consist primarily of utility plant in service, regulatory assets, and goodwill, our
accounting for post-retirement benefits, and our accounting for income taxes. We have discussed the
selection and development of our critical accounting policies and estimates with the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors.

Revenue Recognition — Our utility revenues recognized in an accounting petiod include amounts billed to
customers on a cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the last billing to the end of
the accounting period. The estimated usage is based on our judgment and assumptions; our actual results
could differ from these estimates, which would result in operating revenues being adjusted in the period that
the revision to our estimates is determined.

In some operating divisions, we commence the billing of our utility customers, under new rates, upon
authorization from the respective regulatory commission and before the final commission rate order is issued.
The revenue recognized reflects an estimate based on our judgment of the final outcome of the commission’s
ruling. We monitor the applicable facts and circumstances regularly, and revise the estimate as required. The
revenue billed and collected prior to the final ruling is subject to refund based on the commission’s final
ruling.

Regulatoty Assets and Liabilities — We defer costs and credits on the balance sheet as regulatory assets
and liabilities when it is probable that these costs and credits will be recognized in the rate-making process in
a period different from when the costs and credits were incurred. These deferred amounts, both assets and
liabilities, are then recognized in the income statement in the same period that they are reflected in our rates
charged for water or wastewater service. In the event that our assessment as to the probability of the
inclusion in the rate-making process is incotrect, the associated regulatory asset ot liability would be adjusted
to reflect the change in our assessment or change in regulatory approval.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets, Goodwill and Intangible Assets — We review our long-lived assets for
impairment, including utility plant in service and investment in joint venture. We also review regulatory assets
for the continued application of the FASB’s accounting guidance for regulated operations. Our review
determines whether there have been changes in circumstances or events that have occurred that require
adjustments to the carrying value of these assets. Adjustments to the carrying value of these assets would be
made in instances where their inclusion in the rate-making process is unlikely.

We test the goodwill atttibutable to each of our reporting units for impairment at least annually on July 31, or
more often, if circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. When testing goodwill for
impairment, we may assess qualitative factors for some or all of our reporting units to determine whether it’s
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Alternatively, we
may bypass this qualitative assessment for some of our reporting units and perform step 1 of the quantitative
two-step goodwill impairment test. If we perform step 1 and determine that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its catrying amount, we would petform step 2 to measure such impairment. The assessment
requires significant management judgment and estimates that are based on budgets, general strategic business
plans, historical trends and other data and relevant factors. If changes in circumstances or events occur, or
estimates and assumptions that were used in our impairment test change, we may be required to record an
impairment charge for goodwill. Based on our compatison of the estimated fair value of each reporting unit
to their respective carrying amounts, the impairment test performed in 2013 concluded that the estimated fair
value of each reporting unit, which has goodwill recorded, exceeded the reporting unit’s carrying amount by
at least 55%, for reporting units that were tested quantitatively, indicating that none of our goodwill was
impaired
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)
(In thousands of dollars, excvept per share amounts)

Accouanting for Post-Retirement Benefits — We maintain qualified defined benefit pension plans and plans
that provide for post-retirement benefits other than pensions. Accounting for pensions and other post-
retirement benefits requites an extensive use of assumptions about the discount rate, expected return on plan
assets, the rate of future compensation increases received by our employees, mortality, turnover and medical
costs. Each assumption is reviewed annually with assistance from our actuarial consultant, who provides
guidance in establishing the assumptions. The assumptions are selected to represent the average expected
experience over time and may differ in any one year from actual experience due to changes in capital markets
and the overall economy. These differences will impact the amount of pension and other post-retirement
benefit expense that we recognize.

Out discount rate assumption was determined by selecting a hypothetical portfolio of high quality corporate
bonds appropriate to provide for the projected benefit payments of the plan. The selected bond portfolio
was derived from a universe of Aa-graded corporate bonds, all of which were noncallable (or callable with
make-whole provisions), and have at least $50,000 in outstanding value. The discount rate was then
developed as the single rate that equates the market value of the bonds purchased to the discounted value of
the plan’s benefit payments. Our pension expense and liability (benefit obligations) increases as the discount
rate is reduced. A 25 basis-point reduction in this assumption would have increased 2013 pension expense by
$898 and the pension liabilities by $10,270. The present values of Aqua America’s future pension and other
post-tetirement obligations were determined using discount rates of 5.12% at December 31, 2013 and 4.17%
at December 31, 2012. Our expense under these plans is determined using the discount rate as of the
beginning of the year, which was 4.17% for 2013, and will be 5.12% for 2014. In 2012, our pension benefits
were re-measured as of May 1, 2012 to reflect the pension benefits assumed in our Ohio acquisition. The
expense for 2012 was determined using a 5.00% discount rate for the period January 1, 2012 — April 30, 2012
and 4.70% for the period May 1, 2012 — December 31, 2012.

Our expected retutn on assets is determined by evaluating the asset class return expectations with our
advisors as well as actual, long-term, historical results of our asset returns. The Company’s market-related
value of plan assets is equal to the fair value of the plan assets as of the last day of its fiscal year, and is a
determinant for the expected return on assets, which is a component of net pension expense. Our pension
expense increases as the expected return on assets decreases. A 25-basis-point reduction in this assumption
would have increased 2013 pension expense by $492. For 2013, we used a 7.50% expected return on assets
assumption which will remain unchanged for 2014. The expected return on assets is based on a targeted
allocation of 25% to 75% domestic equities, 0% to 10% international equities, 25% to 50% fixed income, 0%
to 5% alternative investments, and 0% to 20% cash and cash equivalents. We believe that our actual long-
term asset allocation on average will approximate the targeted allocation. Our targeted allocation is driven by
the investment strategy to earn a reasonable rate of return while maintaining risk at acceptable levels through
the diversification of investments across and within various asset categories.

Funding requirements for qualified defined benefit pension plans are determined by government regulations
and not by accounting pronouncements. In accordance with funding rules and our funding policy, during
2014 our pension contribution is expected to approximate $17,875. Future years’ contributions will be
subject to economic conditions, plan participant data and the funding rules in effect at such time as the
funding calculations are performed, though we expect future changes in the amount of contributions and
expense recognized to be generally included in customer rates. During 2014, our funding of other post-
retirement benefit plans are expected to approximate $2,763.

Accounting for Income Taxes — We estimate the amount of income tax payable or refundable for the
current year and the deferred income tax liabilities and assets that results from estimating temporary
differences resulting from the treatment of specific items, such as depreciation, for tax and financial statement
reporting. Generally, these differences result in the recognition of a deferred tax asset or liability on our
consolidated balance sheet and require us to make judgments regarding the probability of the ultimate tax
impact of the vatious transactions we enter into. Based on these judgments, we may record tax reserves or
adjustments to valuation allowances on deferred tax assets to reflect the expected realization of future tax
benefits. Actual income taxes could vary from these estimates and changes in these estimates can increase
income tax expense in the petiod that these changes in estimates occur.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (continued)
(In thousands of dollars, exccept per share amounts)

Our determination of what qualifies as a capital cost versus a repair expense tax deduction as it relates to our
repair tax accounting method change beginning in 2012 is subject to subsequent adjustment as well as IRS
audits, changes in tax laws, the expiration of a statute of limitations, or other unforeseen matters, and could
impact the tax benefits that have already been recognized. We establish reserves for uncertain tax positions
based upon management’s judgment as to the sustainability of these positions. These accounting estimates
related to the uncertain tax position reserve require judgments to be made as to the sustainability of each
uncertain tax position based on its technical merits. We believe our tax positions comply with applicable law
and that we have adequately recorded reserves as required. However, to the extent the final tax outcome of
these matters is different than our estimates recorded, we would then need to adjust our tax reserves which
could result in additional income tax expense or benefits in the period that this information is known.

IMPACT OF RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

We describe the impact of recent accounting pronouncements in Note 1 — Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, of the consolidated financial statements.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Management’s Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Aqua America, Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control
over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company’s
internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of recotds that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, ot that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may detetiorate.

In assessing the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, management used the criteria set forth by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in Internal Control-Iniegrated Framework
(1992). As a result of management’s assessment and based on the criteria in the framework, management has concluded that,
as of December 31, 2013, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which is included
herein.

At bt

Nicholas DeBenedictis David P. Smeltzer
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
March 3, 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
of Aqua America, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of net income, of
comprehensive income, of capitalization, of equity and of cash flows present faitly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Aqua America, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2013 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Inzernal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (1992 Framework)
(“COSO”). The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements and on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards requite that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial teporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedutes
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iif) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, ot
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Muﬁ

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 3, 2014
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME
(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)
Years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011

Operating revenues

Operating costs and expenses:
Operations and maintenance
Depreciation
Amortization
Taxes other than income taxes

Operating income
Other expense (income):
Interest expense, net
Allowance for funds used during construction
Gain on sale of other assets
Equity loss (eatnings) in joint venture
Income from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

Income from discontinued operations

Net income attributable to common shareholders

Income from continuing operations per share:
Basic
Diluted

Income from discontinued operations per share:
Basic
Diluted

Net income per common share:
Basic
Diluted
Average common shares outstanding during the petiod:
Basic
Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012 2011
$ 768,643 757,760 $ 687,291
285,340 271,843 256,743
119,258 111,767 103,412
5,535 5,229 4,888
53,268 47,404 41,449
463,401 436,243 406,492
305,242 321,517 280,799
77,316 77,757 77,804
2,274) (4,142) (7,150
(148) (1,090) (649)
2,665 (1,976) -
227,683 250,968 210,794
22,690 66,881 69,111
204,993 184,087 141,683
24,732 20,493 14,279
8,425 8,017 12,893
16,307 12,476 1,386
$ 221,300 196,563 $ 143,069
$ 1.16 1.06 $ 0.82
$ 116 1.05 $ 0.82
$ 0.09 007 $ 0.01
$ 0.09 007 $ 0.01
$ 1.26 113§ 0.83
$ 1.25 112§ 0.83
176,140 174,201 172,727
176,814 174,918 173,361
$ 0.584 0536 $ 0.504




AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands of dollars)

Years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011

2013 2012 2011

Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 2213008 196,563 % 143,069
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:

Unrealized holding gain (loss) on investments, net of tax of $76, $106, and $(5) for the

yeats ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively 141 198 (10)

Reclassification adjustment for loss (gain) reported in net income, net of tax (benefit)

of $(49), $182, and $125 for the twelve months ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and

2011, respectively (1) 90 (339) (233)
Comprehensive income $ 221531§ 196422% 142,826

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(1) Amount of pre-tax loss (gain) of $139, $(521), and $(358) reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to
loss (gain) on sale of other assets on the consolidated statements of net income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012,
and 2011, respectively.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Less: accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable and unbilled revenues, net
Income tax receivable
Deferred income taxes
Inventory, materials and supplies
Prepayments and other current assets
Assets of discontinued operations held for sale
Total current assets

Regulatory assets

Deferred charges and other assets, net
Investment in joint venture

Funds restricted for construction activity
Goodwill

AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands of dollars, except per share amounts)
December 31, 2013 and 2012

Assets

Liabilities and Equity

Aqua America stockholders' equity:

Common stock at $.50 par value, authorized 300,000,000 shares, issued 177,928,922 and 175,985,437 in

2013 and 2012
Capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings

Treasury stock, at cost, 1,178,323 and 776,355 shares in 2013 and 2012

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total Aqua America stockholders' equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total Equity

Long-term debt, excluding current portion
Commitments and contingencies (See Note 9)

Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Loans payable
Accounts payable
Accrued interest

Accrued taxes
Other accrued liabilities

Liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale

Total current liabilities
Deferred credits and other liabilities:

Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits

Customers' advances for construction
Regulatory liabilities

Other

Total deferred credits and other liabilities

Contributions in aid of construction

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2013 2012
5,387,852 § 5,050,400
1,220,559 1,114,237
4,167,293 3,936,163
5,058 5521
95,356 92,921
7,873 16,082
40,038 37,818
11,438 11,757
11,112 10,372
794 86,423
171,669 260,894
585,600 521,264
50,290 49,852
48,695 38,620
47 23,572
28,223 28,152
5051,817 § 4,858,517
88,964 $ 70,472
743,335 718,482
729,272 611,303
(27,082) (14,668)
346 115
1,534,835 1,385,704
208 188
1,535,043 1,385,892
1,468,583 1,543,954
86,288 45,038
36,740 80,383
65,816 55,506
13,615 14,026
15,442 28214
34,193 27,360
14,816 23,637
266,910 274,164
867,880 723,367
74,257 71,595
281,014 241,363
81,552 157,978
1,304,703 1,194,303
476,578 460,204
5,051,817 § 4,858,517




AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

(In thousands of dollars, except per shate amounts)
December 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Aqua America stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $.50 par value $ 88,964 § 70,472
Capital in excess of par value 743,335 718,482
Retained earnings 729,272 611,303
Treasury stock, at cost (27,082) (14,668)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 346 115
Total Aqua America stockholders' equity 1,534,835 1,385,704
Noncontrolling interest 208 188
Total equity 1,535,043 1,385,892
Long-term debt of subsidiaries (substantially secured by utility plant):
Interest Rate Range Maturity Date Range
0.00% to 0.99% 2023 to 2033 5,035 2,884
1.00% to 1.99% 2014 to 2035 28,615 27,251
2.00% to 2.99% 2024 to 2031 14,903 17,120
3.00% to 3.99% 2016 to 2047 167,365 107,477
4.00% to 4.99% 2020 to 2048 447,297 367,657
5.00% to 5.99% 2014 to 2043 284,362 320,729
6.00% to 6.99% 2015 to 2036 64,923 64,903
7.00% to 7.99% 2022 to 2027 35,056 35,660
8.00% to 8.99% 2021 to 2025 19,283 19,632
9.00% to 9.99% 2018 to 2026 28,500 34,547
10.00% to 10.99% 2018 6,000 6,000
1,101,339 1,003,860
Notes payable to bank under revolving credit agreement, variable rate, due March
2017 - 100,000
Unsecured notes payable:
Notes at 3.57% due 2027 50,000 50,000
Notes ranging from 4.62% to 4.87%, due 2014 through 2024 171,400 193,000
Notes ranging from 5.01% to 5.95%, due 2014 through 2037 232,132 242,132
1,554,871 1,588,992
Current portion of long-term debt 86,288 45,038
Long-term debt, excluding curtent portion 1,468,583 1,543,954
Total capitalization $ 3,003,626 $ 2,929,846

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(In thousands of dollars)
Accumulated
Capital in Other
Common  excess of Retained Treasury  Comprehensive Noncontrolling
stock par value earnings stock Income Interest Total
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 69223 § 664369 § 452,470 $ (12,307) § 499 § 572 $ 1,174,826
Net income - - 143,069 - - 14 143,083
Purchase of subsidiary shares from
noncontrolling interest - - - - - (82 82
Other comprehensive loss, net of income tax
of $130 - - - - (243) - (243)
Dividends - - (87,133) - - - (87,133)
Sale of stock (753,958 shares) 295 11,987 - 325 - - 12,607
Repurchase of stock (51,431 shares) - - - (1,163) - - (1,163)
Equity Compensation Plan (79,133 shares) 32 (32 - - - - -
Exercise of stock options (530,613 shares) 212 6,391 - - - - 6,603
Stock-based compensation - 3,964 (72) - - - 3,892
Employee stock plan tax benefits - (573) - - - - (573
Balance at December 31, 2011 69,762 686,106 508,334 (13,145) 256 504 1,251,817
Net income - - 196,563 - - 17 196,580
Purchase of subsidiary shares from
noncontrolling interest - - - - - (333) (333)
Other comprehensive loss, net of income tax
of $76 - - - - (141) - (141)
Dividends - - (93423) - - - (93,423)
Sale of stock (726,093 shares) 285 12,610 - 295 - - 13,190
Repurchase of stock (77,355 shares) - - - (1,818) - - (1,818)
Equity Compensation Plan (19,015 shares) 8 ® - - - - -
Exercise of stock options (1,041,796 shares) 417 14,181 - - - - 14,598
Stock-based compensation - 5,593 (171) - - - 5,422
Balance at December 31, 2012 70,472 718,482 611,303 (14,668) 115 188 1,385,892
Net income - - 221,300 - - 20 221,320
Other comprehensive gain, net of income tax
of $125 - - - - 231 - 231
Dividends - - (102,889) - - - (102,889)
Stock split 17,655 (17,655) - - - - -
Sale of stock (449,129 shares) 188 9,693 - 409 - - 10,290
Repurchase of stock (415,233 shares) - - - (12,823) - - (12,823)
Equity Compensation Plan (43,500 shares) 17 17 - - - - -
Exercise of stock options (1,566,089 shares) 632 25,066 - - - - 25,698
Stock-based compensation - 5,066 (442) - - - 4,624
Employee stock plan tax benefits - 2,700 - - - - 2,700
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 88964 § 743335 § 729272 § (27,082) $ 346§ 208 $§ 1,535,043

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands of dollars)
Years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011

2013 2012 2011
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income attributable to common shareholders $ 221,300 $ 196,563 § 143,069
Income from discontinued operations 16,307 12,476 1,386
Income from continuing operations 204,993 184,087 141,683
Adjustments to reconcile income from continuing operations to net cash flows from operating actwvittes:
Depreciation and amortization 124,793 116,996 108,300
Deferred income taxes 26,742 77,563 72,110
Provision for doubtful accounts 4,712 4,805 4,854
Share-based compensation 5,066 5,550 3,852
Gain on sale of utility system (1,025) - (5,058)
Gain on sale of other assets (148) (1,090) (649)
Net decrease (increase) in receivables, inventory and prepayments 2,238 (7,543) (3,864)
Net increase (decrease) in payables, accrued interest, accrued taxes and other accrued liabilities (12,870) 13,641 421
Decrease (increase) in income tax receivable 8,209 (16,082) 33,600
Other 4,010 (442) (3,208)
Openating cash flows from continuing operations 366,720 377,485 352,041
Operating cash flows from (used in) discontinued operations, net 1,099 (9,078) 14,806
Net cash flows from operating activities 367,819 368,407 366,847
Cash flows from investing activities:
Property, plant and equipment additions, including the non-equity component of allowance for funds used during construction of
$1,741, $3,954, and $6,832 (308,171) (347,985) (325,808)
Acquisitions of utility systems and other, net (14,997) (121,248) (8,515)
Release of funds previously restricted for construction actvity 23,531 67,498 46,330
Additions to funds restricted for construction actvity ©) (2,165) (149)
Net proceeds from the sale of utility systems and other assets 5,315 3,819 13,404
Proceeds from note receivable - - 5,289
Investment in joint venture (14,700) (33,856) (5,087
Other 76 (1,512 (946)
Investing cash flows used in continuing operations (308,952) (435,449) (275,482
Investing cash flows from (used 1) discontinued operations, net 87,389 70,774 (9,422)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (221,563) (364,675) (284,904
Cash flows from financing acttvities:
Customers' advances and contributions in aid of construction 5,119 7,033 3,558
Repayments of customers' advances (4,429) (6,064) (3,686)
Net (repayments) proceeds of short-term debt (43,643) (27,388) 18,103
Proceeds from long-term debt 263,834 300,109 52,513
Repayments of long-term debt (300,323) (202,203) (96,072)
Change in cash overdraft position 9,872 (10,929) 14,503
Proceeds from issuing common stock 10,290 13,190 12,607
Proceeds from exercised stock options 25,698 14,598 6,603
Share-based compensation windfall tax benefits 2,420 - -
Repurchase of common stock (12,823) (1,464) (1,163)
Dividends paid on common stock (102,889) (93,423) (87,133)
Financing cash flows used in continuing operations (146,874) (6,541) (80,167
Financing cash flows from discontinuing operations, net 155 126 494
Net cash flows used in financing activities (146,719) (6,415) (79,673)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (463) (2,683) 2,270
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,521 8,204 5,934
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 5058 § 5521 § 8,204
Cash pad during the year for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 75453 § 74152 § 71,640
Income taxes 6,995 § 9,319 $ 5,431

See accompanying notes to consohdated financial statements.

See Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation, Customers’ Advances for
Construction, Note 10 — Long-term Debt and Loans Payable, and Note 14 — Employee Stock and Incentive Plan for a description of non-

cash activities.
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AQUA AMERICA, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations — Aqua America, Inc. (“Aqua America,” the “Company,” “we,” or “us”) is the
holding company for regulated utilities providing water or wastewater services concentrated in Pennsylvania,
Ohio, Texas, Illinois, North Carolina, New Jersey, Indiana, and Virginia. Our largest operating subsidiary,
Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc.(“Aqua Pennsylvania”), which accounted for approximately 54% of our operating
revenues and a larger percentage of our net income for 2013, and provided water or wastewater services to
customers in the suburban areas north and west of the City of Philadelphia and in 26 other counties in
Pennsylvania. The Company’s other regulated utility subsidiaries provide similar services in seven other
states. In addition, the Company’s non-regulated subsidiary, Aqua Resources, provides liquid waste hauling
and disposal, water and wastewater services through operating and maintenance contracts with municipal
authorities and other parties in close proximity to our utility companies’ service territories, offers, through a
third party, water and sewer line repair service and protection solutions to households, backflow prevention,
construction, and other non-regulated water and wastewater services, and the Company’s non-regulated
subsidiary, Aqua Infrastructure, provides non-utility raw water supply services for firms, with which we enter
into a water supply contract, in the natural gas drilling industry.

In September 2012, we began to market for sale our water and wastewater operations in Florida, which
served approximately 38,000 customers, and our non-regulated wastewater treatment facility in Georgia. In
March, April, and December 2013, through five separate sales transactions, we completed the sale of our
water and wastewater utility systems in Florida, which concluded our regulated operations in Florida. One of
our sales in Florida which was completed in March 2013, and represented approximately 8% of our
customers served in Florida, remains subject to customaty regulatory review, for which we expect to receive
the regulator’s decision by midyear 2014. If the regulator does not approve this sale, the purchase price
would be refunded and the assets sold would revert back to the Company. In May 2012, we acquired all of
American Water Works Company, Inc.’s (“American Water”) water and wastewater operations in Ohio,
which serve approximately 59,000 customers, and simultaneously sold our water operations in New York,
which served approximately 51,000 customers. In January 2012, we sold our regulated water operations in
Maine, which served approximately 16,000 customers, to Connecticut Water Setvices, Inc. These
transactions concluded our regulated operations in Maine and New York.  During the second quarter of
2011, we acquired all of American Water’s water and wastewater operations in Texas, which serve
approximately 5,300 customers, and sold our regulated water and wastewater operations in Missouti, which
served approximately 3,900 customers and concluded our regulated utility operations in Missouri. The
operating results, cash flows, and financial position of the Company’s Maine, New York, Florida, and Georgia
subsidiaries have been presented in the Company’s consolidated financial statements as discontinued
operations. Unless specifically noted, the financial information presented in the notes to consolidated
financial statements reflects the Company’s continuing operations.

The company has identified ten operating segments and has one reportable segment named the Regulated
segment. The reportable segment is comprised of eight operating segments for our water and wastewater
regulated utility companies which are organized by the states where we provide these setvices. These
operating segments are aggregated into one reportable segment since each of the Company’s operating
segments has the following similarities: economic characteristics, nature of services, production processes,
customers, water distribution or wastewater collection methods, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. In addition, two operating segments are not quantitatively significant to be reportable and are
comprised of the businesses that provide water and wastewater services through operating and maintenance
contracts with municipal authorities and other parties in close proximity to our utility companies’ service
tetritories as well as offers, through a third party, water and sewer line repair service and protection solutions
to households, liquid waste hauling and disposal, backflow prevention, construction, and other non-regulated
water and wastewater services, and non-utility raw water supply services for firms, with which we enter into a
water supply contract, in the natural gas drilling industry. These segments are included as a component of
“othet,” in addition to corporate costs that have not been allocated to the Regulated segment and
intersegment eliminations.
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Regulation — Most of the operating companies that are regulated public utilities are subject to regulation by
the regulatory commissions of the states in which they operate. The respective regulatory commissions have
jurisdiction with respect to rates, service, accounting procedures, issuance of securities, acquisitions and other
matters. Some of the operating companies that are regulated public utilities are subject to rate regulation by
county or city government. Regulated public utilities follow the Financial Accounting Standards Board’s
(“FASB”) accounting guidance for regulated operations, which provides for the recognition of regulatory
assets and liabilities as allowed by regulators for costs or credits that are reflected in current rates or are
considered probable of being included in future rates. The regulatory assets or liabilities are then relieved as
the cost ot credit is reflected in rates.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements — The preparation of
consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation —The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. All common share, per
common share, stock unit, and per stock unit data, for all periods presented, has been adjusted to give effect
to the September 1, 2013 five-for-four stock split effected in the form of a 25% stock distribution (See Note
12). Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified, including reporting discontinued operations (see
Note 3), to conform to the current period presentation.

Recognition of Revenues — Revenues in our Regulated segment include amounts billed to customers on a
cycle basis and unbilled amounts based on estimated usage from the latest billing to the end of the accounting
petiod. In addition, the Company has non-regulated revenues that are recognized when services are
petformed and are primarily associated with water and wastewater services through operating and
maintenance contracts with municipal authorities and other parties in close proximity to our utility
companies’ service territories as well as offers, through a third party, water and sewer line repair service and
protection solutions to households, liquid waste hauling and disposal, backflow prevention, construction, and
other non-regulated water and wastewater services, and non-utility raw water supply services for firms in the
natural gas industry of $17,366 in 2013, $17,730 in 2012, and $12,364 in 2011.

Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation — Property, plant and equipment consist primarily of
utility plant. The cost of additions includes contracted cost, direct labor and fringe benefits, materials,
overheads and, for utility plant, allowance for funds used during construction. Water systems acquited ate
recorded at estimated original cost of utility plant when first devoted to utility service and the applicable
depreciation is recorded to accumulated depreciation. The difference between the estimated original cost, less
applicable accumulated depreciation, and the purchase price is recorded as an acquisition adjustment within
utility plant as permitted by the applicable regulatory jurisdiction. At December 31, 2013, utility plant
includes a net credit acquisition adjustment of $27,466, which is generally being amortized from 2 to 53 years,
except where not permitted or appropriate. Amortization of the acquisition adjustments totaled $2,641 in
2013, $2,858 in 2012, and $2,741 in 2011.

Utility expenditures for maintenance and repairs, including major maintenance projects and minor renewals
and betterments, are charged to operating expenses when incurred in accordance with the system of accounts
presctibed by the regulatory commissions of the states in which the company operates. The cost of new units
of property and betterments are capitalized. Utility expenditures for water main cleaning and relining of pipes
are deferred and recorded in net property, plant and equipment in accordance with the FASB’s accounting
guidance for regulated operations. As of December 31, 2013, $10,293 of these costs have been incurred since
the last rate proceeding and the Company expects to recover these costs in future rates.

The cost of software upgrades and enhancements are capitalized if they result in added functionality which
enable the software to perform tasks it was previously incapable of performing. Information technology
costs associated with major system installations, conversions and improvements, such as software training,
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data conversion and business process reengineeting costs, are deferred as a regulatory asset if the Company
expects to recover these costs in future rates. If these costs are not deferred, then these costs are charged to
operating expenses when incurred. As of December 31, 2013, $19,280 of these costs have been deferred,
since the last rate proceeding, as a regulatory asset, and the deferral is reported as a component of net
property, plant and equipment.

When units of utility property are replaced, retired or abandoned, the recorded value thereof is credited to the
asset account and such value, together with the net cost of removal, is charged to accumulated depreciation.
To the extent the Company recovers cost of removal or other retirement costs through rates after the
retitement costs ate incurred, a regulatory asset is recorded. In some cases, the Company recovers retirement
costs through rates during the life of the associated asset and before the costs are incurred. These amounts
result in a regulatory liability being reported based on the amounts previously recovered through customer
rates.

The straight-line remaining life method is used to compute depreciation on utility plant. Generally, the
straight-line method is used with respect to transportation and mechanical equipment, office equipment and
laboratory equipment.

Long-lived assets of the Company, which consist primarily of Utility Plant in Service and regulatory assets, are
reviewed for impairment when changes in circumstances or events occur. There has been no change in
circumstances ot events that have occurred that require adjustments to the carrying values of these assets.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, property, plant and equipment additions purchased at the petiod
end, but not yet paid for are $30,974, $29,588, and $32,578, respectively.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction — The allowance for funds used during construction
(“AFUDC?”) represents the capitalized cost of funds used to finance the construction of utility plant. In
general, AFUDC is applied to construction projects requiring more than one month to complete. No
AFUDC is applied to projects funded by customer advances for construction, contributions in aid of
construction, or applicable state-revolving fund loans. AFUDC includes the net cost of borrowed funds and
a rate of return on other funds when used, and is recovered through water rates as the utility plant is
depreciated. The amount of AFUDC trelated to equity funds in 2013 was $533, 2012 was $188, and 2011 was
$318. No interest was capitalized by our non-regulated businesses.

Cash and Cash Equivaleats — The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an otiginal
maturity of three months or less, which are not restricted for construction activity, to be cash equivalents.

The Company had a book overdraft for specific disbursement cash accounts of $21,753 and $11,881 at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. A book overdraft represents transactions that have not cleared
the bank accounts at the end of the period. The Company transfers cash on an as-needed basis to fund these
items as they clear the bank in subsequent periods. The balance of the book overdraft is reported as accounts
payable and the change in the book overdraft balance is reported as cash flows from financing activities, due
to our ability to fund the overdraft with the Company’s credit facility.

Accounts Receivable — Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amounts. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is the Company’s best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in our existing
accounts receivable, and is determined based on historical write-off experience and the aging of account
balances. The Company reviews the allowance for doubtful accounts quarterly. Account balances are written
off against the allowance when it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. When utility customers
request extended payment terms, credit is extended based on regulatory guidelines, and collateral is not
required.

Regulatoty Assets, Deferred Chatges and Other Assets — Deferred charges and other assets consist of
financing expenses, other costs and marketable securities. Deferred bond issuance expenses are amortized
over the life of the related issues. Call premiums related to the early redemption of long-term debt, along
with the unamortized balance of the related issuance expense, are deferred and amortized over the life of the
long-term debt used to fund the redemption as the Company has received or expects to receive rate recovery
of these costs. Other costs, for which the Company has received or expects to receive prospective rate
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recovery, are defetred as a regulatory asset and amortized over the petiod of rate recovery in accordance with
the FASB’s accounting guidance for regulated operations. See Note — 6 Regulatory Assets and Liabilities for
further information regarding the Company’s regulatory assets.

Marketable securities are considered “available-for-sale” and accordingly, are carried on the balance sheet at
fair market value. Unrecognized gains ate included in other comprehensive income.

Investment in Joint Venture — The Company uses the equity method of accounting to account for our 49%
investment in a joint venture with a firm that operates natural gas pipelines and processing plants for the
construction and operation of a private pipeline system to supply raw water to natural gas Wﬂg
operations in the Marcellus Shale in north-central Pennsylvania, which commenced operatd@s in the second
quarter of 2012. Our initial investment is carried at cost. Subsequently, the carrying amount of our
investment is adjusted to reflect capital contributions or distributions, and our equity in earnings or losses
since the commencement of the system’s operations. Our share of equity earnings or losses in the joint
venture is reported in the consolidated statements of net income as equity losses (earnings) in joint venture.
During 2013 and 2012 we received distributions of $1,960 and $2,744, respectively.

Funds Restricted for Construction Activity — The proceeds received from specific financings for
construction and capital improvement of utility facilities ate held in escrow until the designated expenditures
ate incurred. These amounts are reported as funds restricted for construction activity and are expected to be
released over time as the capital projects are funded.

Goodwill— Goodwill represents the excess cost over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets acquired through acquisitions. Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment annually, or
more often, if circumstances indicate a possible impairment may exist. When testing goodwill for
impairment, we may assess qualitative factors for some or all of our reporting units to determine whether it’s
more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. Alternatively, we
may bypass this qualitative assessment for some of our reporting units and perform step 1 of the quantitative
two-step goodwill impairment test. If we perform step 1 and determine that the fair value of a reporting unit
is less than its carrying amount, we would petform step 2 to measure such impairment. The Company tested
the goodwill attributable for each of our reporting units for impairment as of July 31, 2013, in conjunction
with the timing of our annual strategic business plan, and concluded that the estimated fair value of each
reporting unit, which has goodwill recorded, exceeded the reporting unit’s carrying amount by at least 55%,
for reporting units that were tested quantitatively, indicating that none of the Company’s goodwill was
impaired. The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s goodwill:

Regulated
Segment Other Consolidated
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 22,823 $ 4121 § 26,944
Goodwill acquired during year 1,679 - 1,679
Reclassifications to utility plant
acquisition adjustment (496) - (496)
Other 25 - 25
Balance at December 31, 2012 24,031 4,121 28,152
Goodwill acquired during year 552 - 552
Reclassifications to utility plant
acquisition adjustment (481) - (481)
Other - - -
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 24102 § 4121 § 28,223
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2013 there was no goodwill associated with the Company’s assets of
discontinued operations held for sale.

The reclassification of goodwill to utility plant acquisition adjustment results from a mechanism approved by
the applicable regulatory commission. The mechanism provides for the transfer over time, and the recovery
through customer rates, of goodwill associated with some acquisitions upon achieving specific objectives.

Income Taxes — The Company accounts for some income and expense items in different time periods for
financial and tax reporting purposes. Deferred income taxes are provided on specific temporary differences
between the tax basis of the assets and liabilities, and the amounts at which they ate catried in the
consolidated financial statements. The income tax effect of temporary differences not currently recovered in
rates is recorded as deferred taxes with an offsetting regulatory asset or liability. These deferred income taxes
are based on the enacted tax rates expected to be in effect when such temporary differences are projected to
reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount
more likely than not to be realized. Investment tax credits are deferred and amortized over the estimated
useful lives of the related properties. Judgment is required in evaluating the Company’s Federal and state tax
positions. Despite management’s belief that the Company’s tax return positions are fully supportable, the
Company establishes reserves when it believes that its tax positions are likely to be challenged and it may not
fully prevail in these challenges. The Company’s provision for income taxes includes interest, penalties and
reserves for uncertain tax positions.

In 2012, the Company changed its tax method of accounting for qualifying utility system repairs in Aqua
Pennsylvania effective with the tax year ended December 31, 2012 and for prior tax years. The tax
accounting method was changed to permit the expensing of qualifying utility asset improvement costs that
were previously being capitalized and depreciated for book and tax purposes (the “Repair Change”). The
Repair Change was implemented in response to a June 2012 rate order issued by the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission to Aqua Pennsylvania (“settlement agreement”) which provides for flow-through
accounting treatment of qualifying income tax benefits resulting from the Repair Change. The Repair Change
for 2013 and 2012 results in a significant reduction in the effective income tax rate, a reduction in income tax
expense, and reduces the amount of taxes currently payable. For qualifying capital expenditures made prior
to 2012, the resulting tax benefits have been deferred as of December 31, 2012 and, based on the settlement
agreement, a ten year amortization of the income tax benefits, which reduces future income tax expense,
commenced in 2013. During 2013, some of our other operating divisions outside of Pennsylvania adopted
the Repair Change. These divisions do not employ a flow-through method of accounting and had no impact
on the Company’s effective income tax rate.

Customers’ Advances for Construction and Contributions in Aid of Construction — Water mains, other
utility property or, in some instances, cash advances to reimburse the Company for its costs to construct
water mains or other utility propetty, are contributed to the Company by customers, real estate developers
and builders in order to extend utility service to their properties. The value of these contributions is recorded
as customers’ advances for construction. Non-cash propetty, in the form of water mains and wastewater
systems, has been received, generally from developers, as advances or contributions of $26,188, $27,212, and
$20,823 in 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively. Over time, the amount of non-cash contributed property will
vary based on the timing of the contribution of the non-cash property and the volume of non-cash
contributed property received in connection with development in our setvice tetritories. The Company
makes refunds on these advances over a specific period of time based on operating revenues related to the
property, or as new customers are connected to and take service from the main. After all refunds are made,
any remaining balance is transferred to contributions in aid of construction. Contributions in aid of
construction include direct non-refundable contributions and the portion of customers' advances for
construction that become non-refundable.

Contributed property is generally not depreciated for rate-making purposes as some states’ regulatory
guidelines provide that contributions in aid of construction received must remain on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet indefinitely. Based on regulatory conventions in other states where the Company
operates, some of the subsidiaties do depreciate contributed property and amortize conttibutions in aid of
construction at the composite rate of the related property. Contributions in aid of construction and
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customers’ advances for construction are deducted from the Company’s rate base for rate-making putposes,
and therefore, no return is earned on contributed property.

Inventories, Matetials and Supplies — Inventories are stated at cost. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out method.

Stock-Based Compensation — The Company records compensation expense in the financial statements for
stock-based awards based on the grant date fair value of those awards. Stock-based compensation expense
includes an estimate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is recognized over the requisite service periods of the
awards on a straight-line basis, which is generally commensurate with the vesting term.

Fait Value Measutements — The Company follows the FASB’s accounting guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures, which defines fair value and establishes a framework for using fair value to
measure assets and liabilities. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

® Level 1: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company
has the ability to access;

® Level 2: inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as quoted
market prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical o similar
assets ot liabilities in non-active markets, or other inputs that are observable or can be cotroborated
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities; or

® Level 3: inputs that are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to
maximize the use of obsetvable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. There have been no
changes in the valuation techniques used to measure fair value for the years ended December 31, 2013 and
2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements — In July 2013, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance on
the presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a
tax credit carryforward exists. The update requires an entity to present in certain cases, an unrecognized tax
benefit, or portion of an unrecognized tax benefit in the financial statements as a reduction to a deferred tax
asset for a net operating loss carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward when settlement is
available in this manner under the tax law. The updated guidance is effective prospectively for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2013, with early adoption permitted. The Company eatly adopted the
provisions of the updated guidance beginning July 1, 2013, and the adoption of the revised guidance did not
have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial position.

In February 2013, the FASB issued updated accounting guidance to improve the reporting of reclassifications
out of accumulated other comprehensive income (“AOCI”). The update requires an entity to present
information about the amounts reclassified from AOCI in their financial statements in either 2 single note or
parenthetically on the face of the financial statements. The updated guidance is effective prospectively for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2012. The Company adopted the provisions of the updated
guidance for its reporting period beginning January 1, 2013, and the adoption of the revised guidance did not
have an impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial position.
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Note 2 — Acquisitions

In 2013, the Company completed 15 acquisitions of water and wastewater utility systems in various states.
The total purchase price consisted of $14,997 in cash. The operating revenues included in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company during the petiod owned by the Company were $2,103. The pro forma
effect of the businesses acquired is not material to the Company’s results of operations.

As part of the Company’s growth-through-acquisition strategy, in July 2011, the Company entered into a
definitive agreement with American Water to purchase all of the stock of the subsidiary that holds American
Water’s regulated water and wastewater operations in Ohio. American Water’s Ohio operations served
approximately 59,000 customers. On May 1, 2012, the Company completed its acquisition of American
Wiater’s water and wastewater operations in Ohio. The total purchase price at closing consisted of $102,154
in cash plus specific assumed liabilities, including debt of $14,281, as adjusted pursuant to the purchase
agreement based on book value at closing. The transaction has been accounted for as a business
combination. The Company has included the results of its acquisition in Ohio in our consolidated financial
statements as part of our Regulated segment since the date of acquisition. The operating revenue and
earnings included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company during the period owned by the
Company was $41,167 and $3,987 in 2013, respectively, and $27,981 and $3,265 in 2012, respectively. The
pro forma impact of the Company’s Ohio acquisition was not material to our results of operations for the
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. The purchase price allocation was as follows:

May 1, 2012
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 119,595
Current assets 6,852
Other long-term assets 7,525
Goodwill 1,679
Total assets acquired 135,651
Current liabilities 3,409
Long-term debt, excluding current portion 14,233
Other long-term liabilities 15,855
Total liabilities assumed 33,497
Net assets acquired $ 102,154

In addition to the Company’s acquisition in Ohio, during 2012, the Company completed 16 acquisitions of
water and wastewater utility systems in various states. The total purchase price consisted of $19,094 in cash.
The operating revenues included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company during the period
owned by the Company were $4,033 in 2013 and $1,527 in 2012. The pro forma effect of the businesses
acquired is not material to the Company’s results of operations.

In June 2011, the Company completed its acquisition of approximately fifty-one water and five wastewater
systems in Texas serving approximately 5,300 customers. The total purchase price consisted of $6,245 in
cash. The operating revenues included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company during the
petiod owned by the Company were $3,408 in 2013, $3,245 in 2012, and $1,826 in 2011. The pro forma
effect of the businesses acquired is not matetial to the Company’s results of operations.

In addition to the Company’s acquisition in Texas, during 2011, the Company completed eight acquisitions of
water and wastewater utility systems in various states. The total purchase price consisted of $2,270 in cash.
The operating revenues included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company during the period
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owned by the Company were $708 in 2013, §644 in 2012, and $226 in 2011. The pro forma effect of the
businesses acquired in 2011 is not material to the Company’s results of operations.

Note 3 — Discontinued Operations and Other Dispositions

Discontinued Operations — In September 2012, the Company began to market for sale its water and
wastewater operations in Florida, which served approximately 38,000 customers, and the Company’s waste
water treatment facility in Georgia. In March, April, and December 2013, through five separate sales
transactions, we completed the sale of our water and wastewater utility systems in Florida, which concluded
our regulated operations in Florida. The Company received total net proceeds from these sales of $88,934
and recognized a gain on sale of $21,178 ($13,766 after-tax). One of the Company’s sales in Flotida, which
was completed in March 2013, and represented approximately 8% of our customers served in Florida,
remains subject to customary regulatory review, for which we expect to receive the regulator’s decision by
midyear 2014. If the regulator does not approve this sale, the purchase price would be refunded and the
assets sold would revert back to the Company. The Company has accounted for these operations as business
held for sale. The sale of the Company’s wastewater operation in Georgia will conclude the Company’s
operations in this state.

In July 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with Connecticut Water Service, Inc. to sell its
operations in Maine, which served approximately 16,000 customers, for cash at closing plus specific assumed
liabilities, including debt of $17,364. On January 1, 2012, the Company completed the sale for net proceeds
of $36,870, and recognized a gain on sale of $17,699 ($10,821 after-tax). In 2011, the Company recognized
additional income tax expense of $4,008 for the additional deferred tax liabilities that arise from the difference
between the stock and tax basis of the Company’s investment in its Aqua Maine subsidiary.

In July 2011, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with American Water to sell its operations in
New York for its book value at closing plus specific assumed liabilities, including debt of approximately
$23,000. On May 1, 2012, the Company completed the sale for net proceeds of $36,688 in cash as adjusted
pursuant to the sale agreement based on book value at closing. In 2012, the Company recognized a loss on
sale of $2,736 ($1,874 after-tax), resulting from charges incurred from the sale. In 2011, the Company
recognized additional income tax expense of $3,245 for the additional deferred tax liabilities that arise from
the difference between the stock and tax basis of the Company’s investment in its Aqua New York subsidiary.
The Company’s New York operations served approximately 51,000 customers.

The operating results, cash flows, and financial position of the Company’s subsidiaries named above have
been presented in the Company’s consolidated statements of net income, consolidated statements of cash
flow, and consolidated balance sheets as discontinued operations.
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A summary of discontinued operations presented in the consolidated statements of net income includes the
following:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Operating revenues $ 12264 § 31458 $§ 67,391
Total operating expenses 8,710 24,286 49,617
Operating income 3,554 7172 17,774
Other (income) expense:
Gain on sale (21,178) (14,718) -
Other expenses, net - 1,397 3,495
Income from discontinued operations before income taxes 24,732 20,493 14,279
Provision for income taxes 8,425 8,017 12,893
Income from discontinued operations $ 16307 § 12476 $§ 1386

The assets and liabilities of discontinued operations presented in the consolidated balance sheets include the
following:

December 31,
2013 2012
Property, plant and equipment, at cost $ 319 § 128,463
Less: accumulated depreciation 119 48,856
Net property, plant and equipment 200 79,607
Current assets 594 4,656
Regulatory assets - 2,034
Other assets - 126
Assets of discontinued operations held for sale 794 86,423
Cutrent liabilities 14,348 2,074
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits - 5,166
Contributions in aid of construction - 15,560
Other liabilities 468 837
Liabilities of discontinued operations held for sale 14,816 23,637
Net (liabilities) assets $ (14,022) $ 62,786

Other Dispositions — The following dispositions have not been presented as discontinued operations in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements as the Company does not believe that disclosure of the
following disposed water and wastewater utility systems as discontinued operations is meaningful to the
reader of the financial statements for making investment decisions either individually or in the aggregate. The
gains disclosed below are reported in the consolidated statements of net income as a reduction to operations
and maintenance expense.

In June 2013, the Company sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $3,400. The sale
resulted in the recognition of a gain on sale of these assets, net of expenses, of $1,025 ($615 after-tax), and is
reported in the consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations and maintenance expense.
The utility system represented approximately 0.04% of the Company’s total assets.
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In June 2011, the Company sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $4,106. The sale
tesulted in the recognition of a gain on the sale, net of expenses, of $2,692 ($1,615 after-tax), and is reported
in the consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations and maintenance expense. The
utility systems represented approximately 0.03% of the Company’s total assets.

In May 2011, the Company sold its regulated water and wastewater opetations in Missouri for net proceeds of
$3,225. This sale of the Company’s Missouri operations concluded its regulated utility operations in Missouri.
The sale of the Company’s utility operations in Missouri represented approximately 0.07% of the Company’s
total assets.

In January 2011, the Company sold a water and wastewater utility system for net proceeds of $3,118. The
sale resulted in the recognition of a gain on the sale of these assets, net of expenses, of $2,452 ($1,471 after-
tax), and is reported in the consolidated statement of net income as a reduction to operations and
maintenance expense. The utility system represented approximately 0.01% of the Company’s total assets.

The City of Fort Wayne, Indiana (the “City”) has authorized the acquisition by eminent domain of the
northern portion of the utility system of one of the Company’s operating subsidiaries in Indiana, Utility
Center Inc., (the “Northern Assets”). In January 2008, the Company reached a settlement with the City to
transition the Northern Assets in February 2008 upon receipt of the City’s initial valuation payment of
$16,911. The settlement agreement specifically stated that the final valuation of the Northern Assets will be
determined through a continuation of the legal proceedings that were filed challenging the City’s valuation.
On February 12, 2008, the Company turned over the Northern Assets to the City upon receipt of the initial
valuation payment. The proceeds received by the Company are in excess of the book value of the assets
relinquished. No gain has been recognized due to the contingency over the final valuation of the assets. The
net book value of the Northern Assets has been removed from the consolidated balance sheet and the
difference between the net book value and the initial payment received has been deferred and is recorded in
other accrued liabilities on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. Once the contingency is resolved and
the asset valuation is finalized, through the finalization of the litigation between the Company and the City,
the amounts deferred will be recognized in the Company’s consolidated statement of net income. On March
16, 2009, oral argument was held on procedural aspects with respect to the valuation evidence that may be
presented and whether the Company is entitled to a jury trial. On October 12, 2010, the Wells County
Indiana Citcuit Court ruled that the Company is not entitled to a juty trial, and that the Wells County judge
should review the City of Fort Wayne Board of Public Works’ assessment based upon a “capricious, arbitrary
or an abuse of discretion” standard. The Company disagreed with the Court’s decision and appealed the
Wells County Indiana Citcuit Court’s decision to the Indiana Coutrt of Appeals. On January 13, 2012, the
Indiana Court of Appeals reached a decision upholding the Wells County Indiana Circuit Court decision. On
February 10, 2012, the Company filed a petition for transfer requesting that the Indiana Supreme Court
review the matter. On April 11, 2013, the Supreme Court of Indiana ruled that the statute at issue gives the
Company the right to a full evidentiary heating before a jury regarding the value of the assets and remanded
the case to the trial court for a proceeding consistent with that ruling. The Company continues to evaluate its
legal options with respect to this decision. Depending upon the outcome of all of the legal proceedings,
including the planned transaction below, which would resolve this litigation, the Company may be required to
refund a portion of the initial valuation payment, or may receive additional proceeds. The Northern Assets
relinquished represents approximately 0.4% of the Company’s total assets.

In addition, in December 2012, the Fort Wayne City Council considered an ordinance that sought to declare
it a “public convenience and necessity” to acquire some of the Company's water utility system assets located
in the southwest section of the City and in Allen County (the “Southern Assets”), and if negotiations with
Fort Wayne officials were to fail, to condemn the Southern Assets. The first public hearing on the ordinance
was held on January 22, 2013 and a subsequent hearing scheduled for February 5, 2013 was not held due to
ongoing settlement discussions between the parties. On July 2, 2013, the Company’s operating subsidiary and
the City signed a letter of intent, which among other items, addresses many of the terms by which the City would
purchase the Company’s Southern Assets, will resolve the litigation between the Company and the City with
respect to the Northern Assets, and will establish the terms by which the Company’s operating subsidiary will treat
wastewater sent to it by the City. The letter of intent states that the City agrees to pay the Company $50,100 for
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the Northern Assets and Southern Assets in addition to the $16,911 paid to the Company by the City in 2008 as an
initial valuation payment for the Northern Assets (for a total payment of §67,011). The letter of intent is
conditioned on the Company’s Board of Directors and City Council approving the final terms of the proposed
transaction, and the Company and the City enteting into several definitive agreements that detail the subject matter
of the letter of intent. On February 27, 2014, the Company’s Board of Directors authotized management to enter
into agreements with the City on terms and conditions that are consistent with the July 2, 2013 letter of intent, for
among other items, the sale of the Company’s Northern Assets and Southern Assets to the City. Further, the
completion of the transaction is subject to regulatory requirements and approval. If this transaction is
consummated, the Company will expand its sewer customer base in the City. The completion of the transaction is
not expected to close until the third quarter of 2014. The Company continues to evaluate its legal and
opetational options on an ongoing basis.

Note 4 — Property, Plant and Equipment

December 31, Approximate Range Weighted Average
2013 2012 of Useful Lives Useful Life
Utility plant and equipment:
Mains and accessoties $ 2353812 § 2,190,078 26 to 92 years 76 years
Services, hydrants, treatment plants and
reservoirs 1,361,534 1,275,221 5 to 85 years 48 years
Operations structures and water tanks 240,083 233,743 14 to 70 years 47 years
Miscellaneous pumping and purification
equipment 639,314 594,687 5 to 90 years 37 years
Meters, data processing, transportation and
operating equipment 610,257 573,899 4 to 78 years 26 years
Land and other non-depreciable assets 85,272 95,436 - -
Utlity plant and equipment 5,290,272 4,963,064
Utility construction work in progress 116,259 107,944 - -
Net utility plant acquisition adjustment (27,466) (31,347) 2 to 53 years (1) 19 years
Non-utility plant and equipment 8,787 10,739 4 to 25 years 6 years
Total property, plant and equipment $ 5,387,852 § 5,050,400

(1) Net utility plant acquisition adjustment is generally being amortized from 2 to 53 years, except where not permitted.

Note 5 — Accounts Receivable

December 31,
2013 2012

Billed utility revenue $ 56,569 § 53,173
Unbilled utility revenue 33,624 33,590
Other 9,593 10,479

99,786 97,242
Less allowance for doubtful accounts 4,430 4,321
Net accounts receivable $ 95356 § 92,921
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The Company’s utility customers are located principally in the following states: 47% in Pennsylvania, 16% in
Ohio, 10% in North Carolina, 8% in Texas, and 7% in Illinois. No single customer accounted for mote than
one percent of the Company's regulated operating revenues during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012,
and 2011. The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts:

2013 2012 2011
Balance at January 1, $ 4321 § 4485 % 4,367
Amounts charged to expense 4,712 4,805 4,854
Accounts written off (5,897) (5,939) (5,780)
Recoveries of accounts written off 1,294 970 1,044
Balance at December 31, $ 4430 § 4321 § 4,485

Note 6 — Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

The regulatory assets represent costs that are expected to be fully recovered from customers in future rates
while regulatory liabilities represent amounts that are expected to be refunded to customers in future rates or
amounts recovered from customers in advance of incurring the costs. Except for income taxes, regulatory
assets and regulatory liabilities are excluded from the Company’s rate base and do not earn a return. The
components of regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities are as follows:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Regulatory Regulatory Regulatory Regulatory
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Income taxes $ 494,308 $ 223,592 $ 348,359 § 192,551
Utility plant retirement costs 12,083 22,365 16,976 19,936
Post-retirement benefits 66,535 34,983 139,139 28,795
Water tank painting 1,715 - 2,836 -
Fair value adjustment of long-term debt
assumed in acquisition 4,371 - 4,739 -
Rate case filing expenses & other 6,588 74 9,215 81
$ 585,600 $ 281,014 $ 521,264 $ 241,363

Items giving rise to deferred state income taxes, as well as a portion of deferred Federal income taxes related
to specific differences between tax and book depreciation expense, are recognized in the rate setting process
on a cash or flow-through basis and will be recovered as they reverse. Amounts include differences that arise
between specific utility asset improvement costs capitalized for book and deducted as a repair expense for tax

purposes.

The regulatory liability related to the catch up component of the Aqua Pennsylvania repair tax accounting
change represents the tax benefits realized on the Company’s 2012 tax return, which have not yet flowed-
through as a reduction to income tax expense due to the ten year amottization petiod which began in 2013.
This amortization was stipulated in a June 2012 rate order issued to Aqua Pennsylvania and is subject to
specific parameters being met each year. During 2013, the Company amortized $15,766 of its deferred
income tax benefits, which reduced income tax expense and increased the Company’s net income.

The regulatory asset for utility plant retirement costs, including cost of removal, represents costs already
incurred that are expected to be recovered in future rates over a five year recovety period. The regulatory
liability for utility plant retirement costs represents amounts recovered through rates during the life of the
associated asset and before the costs are incurred.
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Post-retirement benefits include pension and other post-retirement benefits. A regulatory asset has been
recorded at December 31, 2013 and 2012 for the costs that would otherwise be charged to stockholders’
equity for the underfunded status of the Company’s pension and other post-retitement benefit plans. The
regulatory asset related to post-retirement benefits costs includes deferred expense in excess of amounts
funded, which the Company believes will be recoverable in future years as funding of post-retirement benefits
is required. The regulatory liability for post-retirement benefits represents costs recovered in rates in excess
of post-retirement benefits expense.

Expenses associated with water tank painting are deferred and amortized over a period of time as approved in
the regulatory process. Water tank painting costs are generally being amortized over a period ranging from 8
to 17 years.

The Company recorded a fair value adjustment for fixed rate, long-term debt assumed in acquisitions that
matures in various years ranging from 2022 to 2029. The regulatory asset or liability results from the rate
setting process continuing to recognize the historical interest cost of the assumed debt.

The regulatory asset related to rate case filing expenses represents the costs associated with filing for rate
increases that are deferred and amortized over petiods that generally range from one to five years. Other
represents costs incurred by the Company for which it has received or expects to receive rate recovery.

The regulatory asset related to the costs incurred for information technology software projects and water
main cleaning and relining projects are described in Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies —
Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation.

Note 7 - Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes for the Company’s continuing operations consists of:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Current:
Federal $ 9,891) $ (13,854) % (936)
State 5,839 3,172 (2,063)
(4,052) (10,682) (2,999)
Deferred:
Federal 30,218 67,743 76,479
State (3,476) 9,820 (4,369
26,742 77,563 72,110
Total tax expense $ 22,690 § 66,881 § 69,111

The statutory Federal tax rate is 35% and for states with a corporate net income tax, the state corporate net
income tax rates range from 5% to 9.99% for all years presented.
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The reasons for the differences between amounts computed by applying the statutory Federal income tax rate
to income before income tax expense for the Company’s continuing operations are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Computed Federal tax expense at statutory rate $ 79689 $ 87,839 § 73,778
Decrease in Federal tax expense related to repair tax accounting (57,467) (28,948) -
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1,536 8,445 (4,180)
Increase in tax expense for depreciation expense to be recovered in
future rates 295 361 551
Stock-based compensation (421) (386) (355)
Deduction for Aqua America common dividends paid under employee
benefit plan (414 (387) (345)
Amortization of defetred investment tax credits (420) (420) (340)
Other, net (108) 377 2
Actual income tax expense $ 22690 $ 66,881 § 69,111

In December 2012, the Company changed its tax method of accounting for qualifying utility system repairs in
Aqua Pennsylvania effective with the tax year ended December 31, 2012 and for prior tax years. The tax
accounting method was changed to permit the expensing of qualifying utility asset improvement costs that
were previously being capitalized and depreciated for book and tax purposes (the “Repair Change”). The
Repair Change was implemented in response to a June 2012 rate order issued by the Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission to Aqua Pennsylvania (“settlement agreement”) which provides for flow-through
accounting treatment of some income tax benefits resulting from the Repair Change. As a result of this
settlement agreement, the net 2012 income tax benefits of $33,565 reduced the Company’s Federal and state
income tax expense and flowed-through to net income in the fourth quarter of 2012. In 2013, the Company
recorded additional income tax benefits of $14,908, as adjusted for the 2012 tax return. Similar to 2012, the
Company recorded $45,647 of income tax benefits in 2013. The Company recognized a tax deduction on its
2012 Federal tax return of $380,000 for qualifying capital expenditures made prior to 2012 (“catch-up
adjustment”), and based on the settlement agreement, in 2013, the Company began to amortize 1/10% of the
catch-up adjustment. In accordance with the settlement agreement, the amortization is expected to reduce
income tax expense during periods when qualifying parameters are met. During 2013, the Company
amortized its catch-up adjustment and recognized $15,766 of deferred income tax benefits, which reduced
income tax expense and increased the Company’s net income. The Company’s effective income tax rate for
2013, 2012, and 2011, for its continuing operations, was 10.0%, 26.6%, and 32.8%, respectively.

During 2013, additional income tax benefits were recognized of $17,736, related to a change in the
Company’s tax method of accounting for qualifying utility system repairs in some non-Pennsylvania operating
divisions. These divisions currently do not employ a flow-through method of accounting and as such the
change in the Company’s tax method of accounting in these operating divisions had no impact on the
Company’s effective income tax rate.

In September 2013, the Department of Treasury and the Internal Revenue Service issued “Guidance
Regarding Deduction and Capitalization of Expenditures Related to Tangible Property” which contains
standards for determining whether and when a taxpayer must capitalize costs incurred in acquiring,
maintaining or improving tangible property. These regulations will be effective for the Company’s 2014 fiscal
year and eatly adoption is available. The Company has reviewed the regulations and concluded that the
regulations will not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or
consolidated financial position when they are fully adopted.
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The Company establishes reserves for uncertain tax positions based upon management’s judgment as to the
sustainability of these positions. These accounting estimates related to the uncertain tax position reserve
requite judgments to be made as to the sustainability of each uncertain tax position based on its technical
merits. The Company believes its tax positions comply with applicable law and that it has adequately
recorded resetves as required. However, to the extent the final tax outcome of these matters is different than
the estimates recorded, the Company would then adjust its tax reserves or unrecognized tax benefits in the
period that this information becomes known. The Company has elected to recognize accrued interest and
penalties related to uncertain tax positions as income tax expense.

The following table provides the changes in the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits:

Balance at January 1, 2013 $ -
Additions based on tax position related to the current year 28,690
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 28,690

The unrecognized tax benefits relate to the Repair Change, and the tax position is attributable to a temporaty
difference. As a result of the regulatory treatment afforded by the Repair Change in Pennsylvania and despite
this position being a temporary difference, as of December 31, 2013, $9,795 of these tax benefits would have
an impact on the Company’s effective income tax rate in the event the Company does sustain all, or a
portion, of its tax position. The Company does not anticipate material changes to its unrecognized tax
benefits within the next year.

‘The Tax Relief, Unemployment Insurance Reauthorization, and Job Creation Act of 2010 was enacted on
December 17, 2010 and provided for a 100 percent expensing allowance for qualifying capital additions
placed in service after September 8, 2010 through tax year 2011, and extended 50 percent bonus depreciation
for qualifying capital additions for tax year 2012. In February 2011, one of the Company’s state tax
jurisdictions issued guidance that it would recognize the 100% expensing allowance in the 2011 tax year. As a
result of this guidance and the flow-through treatment afforded by that state’s regulatory commission, the net
state income tax benefit reduced the Company’s 2011 state income tax expense by $14,800 and reduced the
Company’s effective state income tax rate. The American Tax Relief Act of 2012 was enacted on January 1,
2013 and provided for an extension of the 50% bonus depreciation for qualifying capital additions for tax
year 2013.
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The following table provides the components of the net deferred tax liability from continuing operations:

December 31,
2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:
Customers' advances for construction $ 26,732 $§ 26,820
Costs expensed for book not deducted for tax, principally accrued expenses 11,085 13,124
Utility plant acquisition adjustment basis differences 9,922 12,496
Post-retirement benefits 19,311 45,015
Tax loss carryfoward 128,688 111,452
Other 3,133 2,360
198,871 211,267
Less valuation allowance 6,431 7,506

192,440 203,761

Deferred tax liabilities:
Utility plant, principally due to depreciation and differences in the basis of fixed
assets due to variation in tax and book accounting 881,007 772,006
Deferred taxes associated with the gross-up of revenues necessary to recovet, in
rates, the effect of temporary differences 112,307 66,361
Tax effect of regulatory asset for post-retirement benefits 19,311 45,015
Defetred investment tax credit 7,657 5,928

1,020,282 889,310

Net deferred tax liability $ 827842 $§ 685,549

At December 31, 2013, the Company has a cumulative Federal net operating loss (“NOL”) of $258,094. The
Company believes the Federal NOLs are more likely than not to be recovered and require no valuation
allowance. The Company’s Federal NOLs do not begin to expire until 2031.

In 2012 and 2011, as a result of the Company’s Federal cumulative NOLs the Company ceased recognizing
the windfall tax benefit associated with stock-based compensation, because the deduction did not reduce
income taxes payable. Upon realization of the Company’s Federal NOLs, the Company will recognize a
windfall tax benefit of $4,822.

At December 31, 2013 the Company has a cumulative state NOL of $531,160, a portion of which is offset by
a valuation allowance because the Company does not believe these NOLs are more likely than not to be
realized. The state NOLs do not begin to expire until 2023.

The Company has unrecognized tax positions that result in the associated tax benefit being unrecognized.
'The Company’s Federal and state NOL cattyforwards are reduced by an unrecognized tax position, on a
gross basis, of $62,219 and $86,016, respectively, which results from the Company’s adoption in 2013 of the
FASB’s accounting guidance on the presentation of an unrecognized tax benefit when a net operating loss
carryforward, a similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward exists. The amounts of the Company’s Federal
and state NOL carryforwards prior to being reduced by the unrecognized tax positions are $320,313 and
$617,176, respectively. The Company records its unrecognized tax benefit as a reduction to its deferred
income tax liability.
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As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s Federal income tax returns for all years through 2011 have been
closed. Tax years 2012 through 2013 remain open to Federal examination. The statute temains open for the
Company’s state income tax returns for tax years 2010 through 2013 in the various states the Company’s
conducts business in. In 2013, the Company’s Illinois subsidiary’s state income tax audit for tax years 2008
and 2009 was completed, which resulted in no significant audit adjustments.

Note 8 — Taxes Other than Income Taxes
The following table provides the components of taxes other than income taxes:

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Property $ 25,764 $ 21,550 $ 16,618
Capital Stock 2,127 3,196 3,559
Gross receipts, excise and franchise 11,857 10,060 9,408
Payroll 7,452 6,967 6,441
Other 6,068 5,631 5,423
Total taxes other than income $ 53,268 $ 47404 $ 41,449

Note 9 — Commitments and Contingencies
The following disclosures reflect commitments and contingencies for the Company’s continuing operations.

Commitments — The Company leases motor vehicles, buildings and other equipment under operating leases
that are noncancelable. The future annual minimum lease payments due are as follows:

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
$ 2072 § 1,443 § 862 § 481 § $202 § 361

The Company leases patcels of land on which treatment plants and other facilities are situated and adjacent
parcels that are used for watershed protection. The operating leases are noncancelable, expire between 2014
and 2051 and contain renewal provisions. Some leases are subject to an adjustment every five years based on
changes in the Consumer Price Index. Subject to the aforesaid adjustment, during each of the next five years,
an average of $571 of annual lease payments for land is due, and the aggregate of the years remaining
approximates $13,531. The Company leases treatment plants to other parties under lease agreements that
require payments to the Company of:

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
$ 494 § 531 § 531 § 531 § 531 § 3,100

The Company maintains agreements with other water purveyors for the purchase of water to supplement its
water supply, particularly during periods of peak demand. The agreements stipulate purchases of minimum
quantities of water to the year 2026. The estimated annual commitments related to such purchases through
2018 are expected to average $10,273 and the aggregate of the years remaining approximates $28,548.
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The Company has entered into purchase obligations, in the ordinary course of business, that include
agreements for water treatment processes at some of its wells in a small number of its divisions. The 20 year
term agreement provides for the use of treatment equipment and media used in the treatment process and are
subject to adjustment based on changes in the Consumer Price Index. The future contractual cash obligation
related to these agreements are as follows:

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
$ 945 § 95 § 986 § 1,007 $ 1,029 § 11,402

In addition, as of December 31, 2013, the estimated capital expenditures required under legal and binding
long-term contracts are approximately $4,200 in 2017.

Rent expense under operating leases, purchased water expense, and water treatment expenses under these
agreements were as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Operating lease expense $ 3,413 § 3,850 § 3,553
Purchased water under long-term agreements 12,923 11,796 14,507
Water treatment expense under contractual agreement 926 897 865

Contingencies —The Company is routinely involved in various disputes, claims, lawsuits and other
regulatory and legal matters, including both asserted and unasserted legal claims, in the ordinary course of
business. The status of each such matter, referred to hetein as a loss contingency, is reviewed and assessed in
accordance with applicable accounting rules regarding the nature of the matter, the likelihood that a loss will
be incurred, and the amounts involved. As of December 31, 2013, the aggregate amount of $11,342 is
accrued for loss contingencies and is reported in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as other accrued
liabilities and other liabilities. These accruals represent management’s best estimate of probable loss (as
defined in the accounting guidance) for loss contingencies or the low end of a range of losses if no single
probable loss can be estimated. For some loss contingencies, the Company is unable to estimate the amount
of the probable loss or range of probable losses. While the final outcome of these loss contingencies cannot
be predicted with certainty, and unfavorable outcomes could negatively impact the Company, at this time in
the opinion of management, the final resolution of these matters are not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Further, Aqua America has
mnsurance coverage for a number of these loss contingencies, and as of December 31, 2013, estimates that
approximately $1,184 of the amount accrued for these matters ate probable of recovery through insurance,
which amount is also reported in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet as deferred charges and other
assets, net. 'The Company is involved in the following condemnation proceedings and legal matters, as
described below:

® Refer to Note 3 — Discontinued Opetations and Other Dispositions for a discussion of the
Company’s challenge to the valuation of the northern portion of its Fort Wayne, Indiana utility
system that was turned over to the City of Fort Wayne, Indiana in February 2008.

* In 2006, a lawsuit was filed by two occupants of a house abutting a wastewater treatment plant
facility owned by the Company’s subsidiary in Florida. The lawsuit, as amended, alleged the plaintiffs
sustained bodily injury and property damage due to the design, operation and maintenance of the
plant. In January 2011, a trial was held which resulted in the judicial dismissal of the count for strict
liability and jury verdicts in favor of the Company on the tematning counts. In June 2011, the
plaintiffs agreed to dismiss their appeals and to release all claims against the Company’s subsidiary
and the Company, which resulted in the conclusion of the original plaintiffs’ litigation against the
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Company’s subsidiary. In the third quarter of 2008, approximately thirty-five additional plaintiffs,
associated with approximately eight other nearby homes, and represented by the same counsel as the
original plaintiffs, filed a separate lawsuit making similar allegations against our Florida subsidiary
with respect to the operation of the facility. The court severed the litigation so that the plaintiffs are
grouped by the houses in which they lived and a separate trial was to be held for each of the
households. Some of these plaintiffs testified in the trial of the original lawsuit in which all
allegations were resolved in the Company’s favor. The claims from the first of these households
were expected to go to trial in May 2013. However, all of the plaintiffs in the 2008 lawsuit have
entered into a confidential comprehensive settlement agreement and in October 2013, the court
dismissed all claims of all the plaintiffs in that matter with prejudice, which completely concludes the
2008 litigation matter. The settlement is covered by the Company’s insurance coverage. Based on
the settlement agreement, the Company believes that the amount of loss is not material to the
Company’s consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial condition.

One of the Company’s subsidiaries acquired in 2008 had entered into a Consent Decree with the
United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) and received from the United States
Department of Justice a proposed civil penalty related to alleged violations, which was estimated to
be approximately $254. The Company’s subsidiary had contested the approptiateness of earlier
calculations of the proposed penalty based on sanitary sewer violations occurring prior to the
acquisition of the subsidiary and the amount of the proposed penalty. A reserve has been accrued
for this loss contingency as it is judged to be probable and the amount is estimable. On April 15,
2013, Company’s subsidiary and the EPA and the Department of Justice submitted a proposed
modification of the Consent Decree for approval by the Northern District of Indiana US District
Court. The Court entered the modification on April 25, 2013. The modification includes the
provision of operational compliance and implementation of a Capacity, Management, Operations,
and Maintenance program for one year and a civil penalty of $254. The Company had withheld
payment of an amount of shares of the Company’s common stock to the sellers as a contingent
indemnification offset related to the proceedings. Pursuant to further agreement with the sellers, the
Company has retained a portion of those shares in an amount anticipated to cover penalty amounts
and attendant costs, and in January 2013, released a number of shares to the sellers. The Company
intends to release a final designated amount of shates to the seller that were withheld, which are in
excess of the amount needed, to cover contingent increases in the absence of such contingent
increases.

In January 2014, the Company’s subsidiary in Texas was notified by the Hays Trinity Groundwater
Conservation District of alleged violations of its rules with potential fines totaling $227 for four of
our water systems in which the unaccounted for watet is alleged to exceed a certain level of the
groundwater withdrawn from the district in 2013. The Company plans to challenge these potential
fines and is unable to estimate the amount of the final fines.

Although the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, there are no other pending legal
proceedings to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a party of to which any of its properties is the
subject that are material or are expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

In addition to the aforementioned loss contingencies, the Company self-insures its employee medical benefit
program, and maintains stop-loss coverage to limit the exposure arising from these claims. The Company’s
reserve for these claims totaled $1,965 at December 31, 2013 and represents a reserve for unpaid claim costs,
including an estimate for the cost of incurred but not reported claims.

Note 10 — Long-term Debt and Loans Payable

Long-term Debt —The consolidated statements of capitalization provide a summary of long-term debt as of
December 31, 2013 and 2012. The supplemental indentures with respect to specific issues of the First
Mortgage Bonds restrict the ability of Aqua Pennsylvania and other operating subsidiaries of the Company to
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declare dividends, in cash or propetty, or repurchase ot otherwise acquire the stock of these companies.
Loan agreements for Aqua Pennsylvania and other operating subsidiaries of the Company contain restrictions
on minimum net assets. As of December 31, 2013, restrictions on the net assets of the Company were
$1,102,879 of the total $1,535,043 in net assets. Included in this amount were restrictions on Aqua
Pennsylvania’s net assets of $818,514 of their total net assets of $1,168,863. As of December 31, 2013,
approximately $864,000 of Aqua Pennsylvania’s retained earnings of approximately $884,000 and
approximately $79,000 of the retained earnings of approximately $127,000 of other subsidiaries were free of
these restrictions. Some supplemental indentures also prohibit Aqua Pennsylvania and some other
subsidiaries of the Company from making loans to, or purchasing the stock of, the Company.

Sinking fund payments are required by the terms of specific issues of long-term debt. Excluding amounts
due under the Company’s revolving credit agreement, the future sinking fund payments and debt maturities
of the Company’s long-term debt are as follows:

Interest Rate Range 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter
0.00% to 0.99% $ 194 § 437 § 437 $ 437 § 437 § 3,093
1.00% to 1.99% 2,322 2,249 2,128 1,994 2,026 17,896
2.00% to 2.99% 1,030 1,056 1,083 1,112 1,143 9,479
3.00% to 3.99% 2,469 2,553 2,649 2,736 2,827 204,131
4.00% to 4.99% 27,260 272 11,087 11,096 11,111 557,871
5.00% to 5.99% 51,673 38,614 16,887 25,069 10,720 373,531
6.00% to 6.99% - 12,000 - 8,923 13,000 31,000
7.00% to 7.99% 345 409 442 479 518 32,863
8.00% to 8.99% 295 405 437 473 512 17,161
9.00% to 9.99% 700 700 700 700 5,700 20,000

10.00% to 10.99% - - - - 6,000 -

Total $ 86288 § 58695 § 35850 § 53,019 § 53,994 § 1,267,025

In October 2013, the Company’s operating subsidiary, Aqua Pennsylvania, Inc., issued $75,000 of first
mortgage bonds, of which §25,000 is due in 2031, $25,000 in 2045, and $25,000 in 2046 with interest rates of
3.94%, 4.61%, and 4.62%, respectively. The proceeds from these bonds were used to repay existing
indebtedness and for general corporate purposes.

In May 2013, the Company’s operating subsidiary, Aqua Ohio, Inc., issued $85,000 of first mortgage bonds,
of which $35,000 is due in 2033, $30,000 is 2044, and $20,000 in 2048 with interest rates of 3.75%, 4.18%,
and 4.43%, respectively. The proceeds from these bonds were used to repay existing indebtedness and for
general corporate purposes.

In November 2012, Aqua Pennsylvania issued $80,000 of first mortgage bonds, secured by a supplement to
its first mortgage indenture, of which $40,000 is due in 2041, $20,000 is due in 2042, and $20,000 is due in
2047 with interest rates of 3.79%, 3.80%, and 3.85% respectively. The proceeds wete used to refinance
higher coupon first mortgage bonds and pay down our revolving credit facility.

In June 2012, the Company issued $50,000 of senior unsecured notes due in 2027 with an interest rate of
3.57%. The proceeds were used to fund the Company’s capital expenditures.

As of December 31, 2013, the trustee fot one issue held $47 pending construction of the projects to be
financed with the issue of bonds in 2012 which is reported in the consolidated balance sheet as funds
restricted for construction activity.

The weighted average cost of long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was 5.00% and 4.81%,
respectively. The weighted average cost of fixed rate long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012 was
5.00% and 5.06%, respectively.
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In March 2012, the Company entered into a five-year $150,000 unsecured revolving credit facility with three
banks that expires in March 2017. Included within this facility is a $15,000 sublimit for daily demand loans.
Funds borrowed under this facility ate classified as long-term debt and are used to provide working capital.
The Company’s $150,000 unsecured revolving credit facility replaced the Company’s prior $95,000 unsecured
revolving credit facility, which expired in May 2012. As of December 31, 2013, the Company has the
following sublimits and available capacity under the credit facility: $50,000 letter of credit sublimit, $25,572 of
letters of credit available capacity, $0 borrowed under the swing-line commitment, and $0 of funds borrowed
under the agreement. Interest under this facility is based at the Company’s option, on the prime rate, an
adjusted Euro-Rate, an adjusted federal funds rate or at rates offered by the banks. A facility fee is chatged
on the total commitment amount of the agreement. Under this facility the average cost of borrowings was
0.83% and 0.85%, and the average borrowing was $26,954 and $68,609, during 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company is obligated to comply with covenants under some of its loan and debt agreements. These
covenants contain a number of restrictive financial covenants, which among other things limit, subject to
specific exceptions, the Company’s ratio of consolidated total indebtedness to consolidated total
capitalization, and require 2 minimum level of earnings coverage over interest expense. During 2013, the
Company was in compliance with its debt covenants under its credit facilities. Failure to comply with the
Company’s debt covenants could result in an event of default, which could result in the Company being
required to repay or finance its borrowings before their due date, possibly limiting the Company’s future
borrowings, and increasing its borrowing costs.

Loans Payable —1n November 2013, Aqua Pennsylvania renewed its $100,000 364-day unsecured revolving
credit facility with four banks. The funds borrowed under this agreement are classified as loans payable and
used to provide working capital. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, funds botrowed under the agreement
were $30,000 and $70,902, respectively. Interest under this facility is based, at the borrower’s option, on the
prime rate, an adjusted federal funds rate, an adjusted London Interbank Offered Rate corresponding to the
interest period selected, an adjusted Euro-Rate corresponding to the interest period selected or at rates
offered by the banks. This agreement restricts short-term botrowings of Aqua Pennsylvania. A commitment
fee of 0.075% is charged on the total commitment amount of Aqua Pennsylvania’s revolving credit
agreement. The average cost of borrowing under the facility was 0.89% and 0.94%, and the average
borrowing was $75,621 and $78,525, during 2013 and 2012, respectively. The maximum amount outstanding
at the end of any one month was $96,103 and $89,973 in 2013 and 2012, respectively.

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had other combined short-term lines of credit of $60,500.
Funds borrowed under these lines are classified as loans payable and ate used to provide working capital. As
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, funds borrowed under the short-term lines of credit were $6,740 and
$9,481, respectively. The average borrowing under the lines was $11,531 and $15,583 during 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The maximum amount outstanding at the end of any one month was $17,081 and $22,941 in
2013 and 2012, respectively. Interest under the lines is based at the Company’s option, depending on the line,
on the prime rate, an adjusted Euro-Rate, an adjusted federal funds rate or at rates offered by the banks. The
average cost of borrowings under all lines during 2013 and 2012 was 1.67% and 1.83%, respectively.

Interest Income — Interest income of $438, $372, and $757 was netted against interest expense on the
consolidated statement of net income for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively.
The total interest cost was §77,754, $78,129, and $78,561 in 2013, 2012, and 2011, including amounts
capitalized of $2,274, $4,142, and $7,150, respectively.

Note 11 - Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at carrying value in the financial statements and approximate fair value as
of the dates presented. The fair value of these instruments is disclosed below in accordance with current
accounting guidance related to financial instruments.

The fair value of funds restricted for construction activity and loans payable are determined based on their
carrying amount and utilizing level 1 methods and assumptions. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the
carrying amount of the Company’s funds restricted for construction activity was $47 and $23,572,
respectively, which equates to their estimated fair value. As of December 31,2013 and 2012, the carrying
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amount of the Company’s loans payable was $36,740 and $80,383, respectively, which equates to their
estimated fair value. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, which is comptised of a money market
fund, is determined based on the net asset value per unit utilizing level 2 methods and assumptions. As of
December 31, 2013 and 2012, the carrying amounts of the Company's cash and cash equivalents were $5,058
and $5,521, which equates to their fair value.

The carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s long-term debt are as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012
Catrying amount $ 1,554871 § 1,588,992
Estimated fair value 1,540,296 1,702,997

The fair value of long-term debt has been determined by discounting the future cash flows using current
market interest rates for similar financial instruments of the same duration utilizing level 2 methods and
assumptions. The Company’s customers’ advances for construction have a carrying value of $74,257

and $71,595 at December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Their relative fair values cannot be accurately
estimated because future refund payments depend on several variables, including new customer connections,
customer consumption levels and future rate increases. Pottions of these non-interest bearing instruments
ate payable annually through 2028 and amounts not paid by the contract expiration dates become non-
refundable. The fair value of these amounts would, however, be less than their carrying value due to the non-
interest bearing feature.

Note 12 — Stockholders’ Equity

At December 31, 2013, the Company had 300,000,000 shares of common stock authorized; par value $0.50.
Shares outstanding and treasury shares held were as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012 2011
Shares outstanding 176,750,599 175,209,082 173,518,872
Treasury shares 1,178,323 776,355 710,482

At December 31, 2013, the Company had 1,738,619 shares of authorized but unissued Series Preferred Stock,
$1.00 par value.

In May 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a five-for-four stock split to be effected in
the form of a 25% stock distribution to shareholders of record on August 16, 2013. Common shares
outstanding do not include shares held by the Company in treasury. The new shates were distributed on
September 1, 2013. Aqua America’s par value of $0.50 per share did not change as a result of the common
stock distribution, and $17,655 was transferred from capital in excess of par value to common stock to record
the stock split. All common share, per common share, stock unit, and per stock unit data, for all periods
presented, has been adjusted to give effect to the stock split.

In February 2012, the Company renewed its universal shelf registration, which expired in December 2011,
through a filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) to allow for the potential future sale
by the Company, from time to time, in one or more public offerings, of an indeterminate amount of our
common stock, preferred stock, debt securities and other securities specified therein at indeterminate prices.

The Company has a shelf registration statement filed with the SEC to permit the offering from time to time
of shares of common stock and shares of preferred stock in connection with acquisitions. The balance
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